
CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 (77s) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

+
*'

ll/e b s ite : www. elkocitynv. gov
Em a il : planning@elkocitynv.gov

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, October 5,2021
beginningat5:30P.M.,P.D.S.T.intheCouncilChambersatElkoCityHall, 1751CollegeAvenue,
Elko, Nevada, and by utilizing GoToMeetins.com.

The public can view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart
phone at: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/654165397. You can also dial in using your phone
at +l (87D 240-3412. The Access Code for this meeting is 654-165-397. Comments can also be
emailed to plannins@,elkocitynv. gov.

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at
http://www.elkocitynv.govl, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov,
and in the following locations:

ELKO CITY HALL - l75l College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: Seotember 29- 2021 2:00 n-m.

The public may contact Shelby Knopp by phone at (775) 777-71,60 or by email at
sknopp@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, l75l College Avenue, Elko,
NV, or on the City website at www.elkocity.com.

Dated this 29th day of September ,2021.

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notifu the City of Elko Planning Department,lT5l College Avenue, Elko,
Nevada, 89801 or by calling(775) 777-7160.



CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
5:30 P.M.. P.D.S.T.. TUESDAY. OCTOBER 5.2021

ELKO CITY HALL. COUNCIL CHAMBERS.
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE. ELKO. NEVADA

HTTPS ://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/654 1 65397

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 24l,this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as

an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Septernber 7,2021- Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 5-21, filed by Koinonia
Construction on behalf of Lisa Turner, to allow required off street parking to be
located within the interior side yard setback to within 3 Yr' of the property line in an

R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) ZoningDistrict, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The property owner and applicant are proposing to build a single family dwelling on
each of the parcels with parking located in the rear, adjacent to the alley. In order to
accommodate the required off street parking, parking would encroach into the
interior side yard setbacks.

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Special election of Vice-Chairperson for the remainder of 2021, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION



Pursuant to Section 3-4-l (E) of the City Code, vacancies occurring otherwise than
through the expiration of term shall be filled for the unexpired term. With City
Council appointing Mr. Puccinelli to the City Council, it leaves the Vice-
Chairperson position vacant.

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R. S. 241 , rhis time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully submitted,



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF ELKO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/392925397  

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Present:  Jeff Dalling 

Mercedes Mendive 

Tera Hooiman 

Stefan Beck 

Gratton Miller 

John Anderson (Arrived at 6:00 p.m. via GoToMeeting) 

 

Absent:  Vacancy 

  

City Staff Present:  Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 

   Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

   Michele Rambo, Development Manager 

   Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 

   Jamie Winrod, Fire Marshal 

   Shelby Knopp, Planning Technician 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

 

There were no public comments made at this time.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

  August 3, 2021 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

***Motion:  Approve the minutes from August 3, 2021 as presented. 

 

Moved by Commissioner Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Commissioner Gratton Miller. 

 

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

  

I. NEW BUSINESS 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7 

 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 3-21, 

filed by Dharni Hotels, LLC., which would allow for the development of an 

apartment building within the C- General Commercial zoning district, and matters 

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

Multi-family residential units within the C-General Commercial zoning district 

require approval of a conditional use permit. The subject property is located on the 

southeast side of Idaho Street, approximately 364’ southwest of the intersection of 

Idaho Street and Manzanita Lane. (APN 001-590-010, 1930 Idaho Street)  

  

*Gratton Miller disclosed that he was involved with the survey for the property and 

recused himself from the item.  

 

Jespal Sidhu, applicant’s representative, said he was available for questions.  

  

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 12, 2021. 

Staff recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff 

Report. Ms. Laughlin requested that the Planning Commission add an additional condition to 

address the long term effect of having the shared parking between the two uses, if they decided 

to approve the application, listed as follows:    

- A revocable access and parking agreement must be filed with Elko County Recorder prior to 

Certificate of Occupancy.  

 

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, had no additional comments or concerns.  

 

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, explained that he had one condition that was listed in the Staff 

Report regarding the improvements along Manzanita Lane.  

 

Jamie Winrod, Fire Marshal, had no additional comments or concerns.  

 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, had no comment or concern.  

 

Commissioner Mercedes Mendive asked if there would be access of the front road and if it 

would be a gated community, since it was going to be in the middle of an area where a lot of 

unfortunate activities take place.   

 

Ms. Laughlin explained where the location of the existing hotel was, and pointed out the 

location of the proposed new apartment building. She explained that the existing 109-unit hotel 

would remain in its existing location. They will be tearing down the existing fence and 

developing the apartment building and both the buildings would be sharing a parking lot.  

 

Mr. Sidhu said they were good with the Planning Commission’s decision and agreed with the 

conditions of approval.  

 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 7 

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 3-21 subject to the 

conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 12, 2021, with an additional 

condition from the Planning Commission, listed as follows:  

 

Planning Department:  

1. That Conditional Use Permit No. 3-21 shall be personal to the permittee and 

applicable only to the submitted application conforming to the exhibits as presented. 

2. The Conditional Use Permit will expire within one (1) year of the date of approval if 

the Applicant is not actively engaged in developing the property. 

3. The complex shall comply with the development standards as outlined in City Code 

Section 3-2-5(E)6. 

4. The public improvements shall be installed, completed, and accepted prior to a 

certificate of occupancy. 

5. That the development shall comply with City Code Section 3-2-17. 

6. Exterior lighting for the complex shall be shielded and cutoff with minimal lighting 

spilling over into the neighboring properties. An illumination schedule is required to 

ensure lighting is adequate for safety with minimal impact to adjacent properties. 

7. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes, kiosks or signage in 

association with this complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain 

internal to the complex. 

8. The common area to be landscaped with a combination of trees and shrubs and shall 

be maintained by the property owner. A Landscaping Plan showing locations and 

quantities of all landscape materials will be submitted and approved during building 

permit submittal.  

9. The property and the buildings to be maintained in an acceptable condition at all 

times. 

 

Development Department: 

1. Public improvements are required for Manzanita Lane along both frontages of the 

property. 

 

Engineering Department: 

1. Full frontage improvements are required along Manzanita Drive, to include, but not 

necessarily be limited to; curb and gutter, sidewalk, some asphalt, and possibly a 

water main, and are to be built per the design by High Desert Engineering. 

 

Public Works Department: 

1. All public improvements to be installed at time of development per Elko City Code. 

 

Planning Commission:  

1. A revocable access and parking agreement must be filed with Elko County Recorder 

prior to Certificate of Occupancy. 

 

Commissioner Beck’s findings to support the motion were the proposed development is in 

conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed 

development with the recommended conditions is in conformance with the existing 

transportation infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7 

site is suitable for the proposed use. The proposed development is in conformance with the 

City Wellhead Protection Program. The proposed use is in conformance with the 

Redevelopment Plan. The proposed use is in conformance with the City Code 3-2-10 (B) 

General Commercial with the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. The proposed 

development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8, and 3-2-18 of the Elko City 

Code. 

 

Moved by Commissioner Stefan Beck, Seconded by Commissioner Tera Hooiman. 
 

Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 4, No = 0, Abstain = 1). 

Yes: Chairman Jeff Dalling, Commissioner Mercedes Mendive, Commissioner Tera Hooiman, 

Commissioner Stefan Beck. 

Abstain: Commissioner Gratton Miller. 

   

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

1. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Vacation 

No. 5-21, filed by Kenneth R. Moores Revocable Living Trust, for the vacation of 

the northwesterly portion of Deerfield Way, consisting of an area approximately 

2,740 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

The area requesting to be vacated was dedicated to the City of Elko with Tower Hill 

Unit 1 subdivision. It was intended originally as a pull out area for the local 

mailboxes but the design was later changed during construction. It is not being used 

for any purpose at this time. City Council accepted the petition for the vacation on 

August 10, 2021. 

  

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 24, 2021. Staff 

recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.  

 

Ms. Rambo had no additional comments or concerns.  

 

Mr. Thibault recommended approval as presented by staff.  

 

Ms. Winrod had no additional comments or concerns.  

 

Mr. Wilkinson had no comments or concerns.  

 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution, which 

conditionally approves Variance No. 5-21, subject to the conditions listed in the City of 

Elko Staff Report dated August 24, 2021, listed as follows:  

 
1. Approved conditions are to be included in the Resolution. 

 
2. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the 

vacation.  

 
3. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 7 

to the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded. 

 
Commissioner Miller’s findings to support the motion were the proposed vacation is in 
conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The proposed 
vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation Component. 
The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive. The 
proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 8-7.  

 

Moved by Commissioner Gratton Miller, Seconded by Commissioner Tera Hooiman. 
 

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

 

2. Review, consideration and possible approval of Division of Large Parcels No. 2-21, 

a Final Map filed by Section Five Associates, LLC for the division of approximately 

590.258 acres of property into eight lots for future development.  Approximately 

314.652 acres fall within an A (General Agriculture) Zoning District in the City of 

Elko and approximately 275.60 acres of property fall within Elko County, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

Subject property is located at the northern terminus of North 5th Street.  (APNs 001-

01D-001 and 006-09L-002). 

 

Lana Carter, Carter Engineering, stated that she was available for questions.  

 

Ms. Rambo went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated August 18, 2021. Staff 

recommended conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.  

 

Ms. Laughlin recommended conditional approval as presented by staff.  

 

Mr. Thibault recommended conditional approval as presented.  

 

Ms. Winrod had no comments or concerns.   

 

Mr. Wilkinson had nothing further to add.  

 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to accept, on behalf of the public, 

the offered drainage and utility easements; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; and conditionally approve Division of Large Parcels 2-21 with findings 

and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated August 18, 2021, listed as follows:  

 

Development Department: 

 

1. The Final Map for is approved for 8 lots for future development.  Two of these lots 

fall within Elko city limits. 

 

2. Site disturbance, including clearing and grubbing, shall not commence prior to the 

issuance of a grading permit by the City of Elko. 

 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 7 

3. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required. 

 

4. Public improvements to be installed at time of development or further division of 

individual lots. 

 

Commissioner Beck’s findings to support the recommendation were the Final Map for the 

Division of Large Parcels has been presented before expiration of the subdivision 

proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.472(2)(b). The Final Map is in conformance with 

the Tentative Map. The proposed map is in conformance with the Land Use and 

Transportation Components of the Master Plan. The proposed development conforms to 

Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, and 3-2-13 of City Code.  

  

 

Moved by Commissioner Stefan Beck, Seconded by Commissioner Gratton Miller. 
 

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

  

3. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for the 2021 

City of Elko Land Inventory update. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

City of Elko Land Inventory spreadsheet is to be updated when necessary. 

 

John Anderson arrived at 6:00 p.m. via GoToMeeting. 

 

Ms. Laughlin went through the Memo included in the packet dated August 24, 2021 and the 

proposed changes listed on the spreadsheet, which was also included in the packet.  

  

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to update the City of Elko Land 

Inventory.  
 

Moved by Commissioner Stefan Beck, Seconded by Commissioner Mercedes Mendive. 

 

*Motion passed unanimously.(6-0)  

  

II. REPORTS 

 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

 

Ms. Laughlin reported that Giovanni Puccinelli was selected as the City Council Member, 

which leaves a vacancy on the Planning Commission. On August 10th the City Council 

approved the tentative Map for the Division of Large Parcels filed by Section Five 

Associates, LLC. They also accepted the petition for the Moores Family Trust Vacation. 

The City Council has continued to table the DAG Appeal for the property on the corner of 

5th & Idaho for their Variance application for the signs, which was denied by the Planning 

Commission. The property owners don’t have the Boundary Line Adjustment recorded, so 

the item was tabled on August 10th and 24th and it will be on the agenda again on September 

14th. The City Council approved the 2nd reading of Ord. 864. They also authorized staff to 

advertise for the vacancy on the Planning Commission. Staff has received one letter of 



 

September 7, 2021 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7 

interest. The City Council will be considering that on the 14th. City Council denied a Curb, 

Gutter, and Sidewalk waiver for a sidewalk on 1st and Oak Street.  

 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

 

1. Zoning Bulletin 

 

D. Miscellaneous Elko County 

 

E. Training 

 

Ms. Laughlin reported that she included a couple of training things in the agenda packet. 

One was an email from Garret with a link on YouTube for a presentation that talks about 

the Legislative actions that took place this year that have to do with Planning and Zoning 

and Redevelopment. She also included a Save the Date for Annual Conference for APA for 

anyone that is interested in attending.  

 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

 

There were no public comments made at this time.  

 

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda 

and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another 

specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to 

combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay 

discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.  

 

 

             

Jeff Dalling, Chairman    Tera Hooiman, Secretary 

 



Agenda Item # I.A.1. 

Created on 9/17/2021  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 5-21, filed by Koinonia 

Construction on behalf of Lisa Turner, to allow required off street parking to be located 

within the interior side yard setback to within 3 ½’ of the property line in an R (Single-

Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  October 5, 2021 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The property owner and applicant are proposing to build a single 

family dwelling on each of the parcels with parking located in the rear, adjacent to the alley. 

In order to accommodate the required off street parking, parking would encroach into the 

interior side yard setbacks.  

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Variance 5-21 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated September 17, 2021. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff report dated September 17, 2021. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Luke Fitzgerald 

521 Mountain City Hwy, #4 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
MEMO DATE:    September 17, 2021 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: October 5, 2021 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Variance 5-21 

APPLICANT:    Koinonia Construction  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-105-011 & 001-105-012 

 

Variance from 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) to allow required residential off street parking to be in the 

interior side yard setback. 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report. 

 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
PARCEL NUMBER:   001-105-011 & 001-105-012 

 

EXISTING ZONING:   R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential 

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  Medium Density Residential 

 

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped, adjacent to developed residential  

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. The applicant is not the property owner but the property owner has provided them 
permission to apply for the variance. 

2. The property is undeveloped with a proposed residential land use. 
3. The lots were created by First Addition File 5 in 25’ wide lots. 
4. Each lot area is approximately 2,500 square feet. With the exception of 3-2-5(G)(2)(a), it 

meets the lot area requirements stipulated in code. 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 

North: R-Residential / Developed 

East: R-Residential / Developed 

South: R- Residential / Developed  

West: R-Residential / Developed 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is currently undeveloped.  
The property is fairly flat. 
The property has alley access in the rear. 
 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES: 
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 
 

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component 

 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component 

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts 
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances 
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 

MASTER PLAN – Land Use: 

 
1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential. 
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 3 of 7 

Medium Density Residential. 
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 

 
The proposed variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component. 

 
MASTER PLAN - Transportation: 

 
1. The area is accessed from Cedar Street as well as alley access. 
2. Cedar Street is classified as a Residential collector. 
3. Public alley in the rear of the lots. 
4. The property has pedestrian connectivity along Cedar Street.. 

 

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component. 

   

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not 
required.  

 
ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 
 

1. The property is located outside any capture zone for any City of Elko well. 
 

The proposed use of the property does not present a hazard to City wells.  
 
SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS: 
 

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 
 

 No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building 
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or 
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this 
subsection for the district in which it is located. 
 

 No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered: 
 a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan; 
 b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in 

this chapter; 
 c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
 d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open 

spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

 
 No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading 

space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part 
of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for 
any other building. 
 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 4 of 7 

 No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension 
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 
The property, as future development is proposed for the principal permitted use as a single 
family residence, conforms to Section 3-2-4 of city code.  

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS: 

1. Minimum area stipulated for the district is five thousand five hundred (5,000) square feet 
for an interior lot in an existing platted subdivision characterized by twenty-five foot 
(25’) wide lots and situation within a residential zoning district. 
 

2. Minimum lot width stipulated for the district of sixty feet (60’), see ** below  

 
3. Minimum lot depth stipulated for the district of one hundred feet (100’) 

 
4. Minimum setbacks stipulated for the district are as follows: 

Front Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet (15’) (20’) to a garage. 
Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20’) 
Interior Side: For single family, a minimum setback of five feet six inches (5.5’)  

 
** A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the effective 
date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not meet minimum 
requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a buildable lot for one single-
family dwelling, provided all other requirements of this chapter are satisfied.  Therefore, this 
variance is for setback consideration for the off street parking in the interior side yard only. 
 
The proposed development for the principal permitted use of a single family residence, is in 
conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G). 
 
 
SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS: 
 

1. The proposed development is proposing two off-street parking spaces and a driveway 
access off the alley into the rear yard. The property is 25’ wide and two parking spaces 
would be a total of 18’ wide leaving 3’6” on each side. 

2. Elko City Code 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) states that no required off street parking space shall be 
located in a required front yard or interior side yard. 

 
The property does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. Approval of variance 1-21 to 
allow parking in the interior side yard setback will be required to bring the proposed 
development into conformance. 

 
SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES: 

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include: 

Application Requirements 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 5 of 7 

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration, 

exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions 

applying to the property under consideration. 

 Applicant states: Narrow lots 

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional 

practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of 

the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the 

property owner of reasonable use of property. 

 Applicant states: Because of their width the lot does not allow for the required 2 

space off street parking. Variance will allow the 2 required stalls to be in the 

interior side yard setback. 

 Staff states: Because this is a legal parcel or lot created by map, File #5, the owner 

has the right to develop it with a single family residence. The proposed 

development does have special circumstances because it is proposed on a very 

narrow lot. The proposed principal permitted use of a single family residence is 

meeting all setbacks and sections of code. The parking could only meet the 

requirement of being outside the interior side yard setback if it was in tandem and 

that would create a very small footprint allowed for the home.  

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the 

same zoning district. 

Applicant states: The other properties not so narrow. 

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 

properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and 

general welfare. 

 Applicant states: The variance allows for more off street parking. 

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 

zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification. 

 Applicant states: Allows for compliance. 

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.  

 Applicant states: Only affects parking. 

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT: 

 
1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).  

 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 6 of 7 

FINDINGS 
 

1. The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master 
Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.  
 

2. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan.  

 
3. The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is 

not required.  
 

4. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.  
 

5. The proposed development as a single family residence conforms to Section 3-2-4 of city 
code.  
 

6. A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the 
effective date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not 
meet minimum requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a 
buildable lot for one single-family dwelling. Therefore, the minimum lot width of 60’ and 
lot area of 5,000 sq. ft. is not required based on this exception. 

 
7. The proposed development is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G) for the 

principal permitted use of a single family residence. 
  

8. The proposed development does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. A variance 
for the parking in the interior side yard setback would be required to be approved for the 
proposed development to be in conformance.  
 

9. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the hardship is the 
narrow lots created by Elko First Addition File #5 and the required width of 18’ for the 2 
off street parking. 

 
10. In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has 

unique circumstances based on that fact that the lots are narrow and the width of 25’ 
minus the 18’ parking required is less than the required interior side yard setbacks. 
 

11. Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on other similar properties within City of 
Elko which were built within the last 15 years.   
 

12. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning 
ordinance. Single family is listed as a principal use in the underlying zone.  
 

13. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 
 

14. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 



Variance 5-21 

Koinonia Construction 
APN: 001-105-011 & 012 

 

  Page 7 of 7 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 
 

1. Variance 5-21 from Elko City Code section 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) is for approval of required 
off street parking in interior side yard setback with access from the alley.  

2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months. 

3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance. 

4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission. 

 



9 5 9 5 o ro z .o C
'

t N 5 9 5 o 5 9 I 5 I c, ra + 6' : bl P J C
I

a 5 (\ \ -(
- U
I p

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

88
88

8+
P

P
ts

lJ
 

P
P

 
P

ts
P

IJ
 

P
P

P
F

lP
F

|P
P

ts
ts

 
F

rP
P

 
P

F
P

 
P

P
P

 
ts

P
 

P
P

Z
P

 
P

 
P

 
tr

 
tr

 
rr

 
P

 
tr

 
P

 
P

 
ts

 
P

 
IJ

 
P

 
P

 
rl 

P
 

H
 

tr
 

P
 

F
 

H
 

tr
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

P
 

ts
 

rr
 

F
T

 P
 

P
 

P
 

6
e!

{!
eo

oo
oo

oo
e{

!{
!o

!!!
o!

oo
o{

!o
!o

w
b

:F
 N

 
l:r

 L
i 

+
 

D
 

.F
 q

t 
({

t 
-r

 
(/

| 
ur

 5
 

N
 

N
r 

p 
p 

S
 

w
 

N
 

F
. 

N
 

u,
 E

 
E

 
N

 
N

 
F

 
lh

 
N

 
lJ

 
p 

(n
Q

oE
)Q

O
O

O
Q

Q
O

O
Q

O
O

O
O

oO
O

O
O

oO
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

o
o 

l. 
Q

 
Q

 
|. 

l. 
Q

 
Q

 
o 

ti 
l:.

o 
o 

o 
o 

l. 
H

 
o 

o 
o 

O
 

o6
 

6o
 

6 
F

 
r-

 
6 

6 
6 

6 
r-

(,
 

P
 

0o
 o

r 
N

 
(,

 
5 

oi
 

rJ
 O

 
O

 
N

 
(o

 N
, 

5 
5 

@
 o

r 
ur

 o
l 

! 
G

 
lJ

 
<

 
G

 
0o

 c
, 

rn
 r

rr
 r

rt
 :

t 
rr

r 
rr

t

=
 H

 H
 E

eE
 E

sB
=

i E
 =

qE
6 

6q
E

g*
 a 

E
 =

 E
 E

E
 ; 

is
n 

=
 i E

E
fiE

;=
=

#,

E
E

 ;,E
E

E
 E

E
 H

 E
E

E
 *E

E
E

E
 E

I fiE
 fi

E
E

=
 =

E
 I 

t E
 I 

E
u=

 i:
 -

 
E

;=
o=

 _
ti 

; 
2 

=
E

; 
X

 
;H

 =
3P

IF
 

? 
; 

i0
" 

=
 

=
 I;E

ni
e

0 E
5 

5 
(.

^)
 c

D
 u

r 
@

 
lv

 
(.

t)
 N

 
! 

L'
J 

rs
 

iS
 

5 
LD

 S
 

5 
P

 
P

 
(O

 !
(.

rl 
rO

 >
J 

l.t
) 

@
 

@
 

O
 

\f 
ol

 
()

 
tO

 L
D

 N
 

(^
) 

qr
 

@
 

{ 
Ln

 5
 

! 
z

5 
ts

 
o 

or
 

@
 

rJ
 

o 
P

 
@

 
- 

uJ
 o

 
(J

t 
N

 
o 

(o
 

\t 
o 

p 
ur

 
>

ga
gg

ai
ca

F
;E

E
ag

gg
fi=

lE
2 

s2
 

=
 E

H
se

 r
2=

 
E

=
a,

"9
g-

{
v

(,
^)

@
,5

T
'N

)t
v(

J)
55

!(
.^

)5
tB

H
os

B
-H

Ip
ai

=
=

8H
E

H
;

=
gQ

E
E

E
=

X
=

E
=

=
P

P
 

_'
 

9
90 vv

P o o ro U
I v -{ o o € (-
) D ln o z o -t z

m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 q

l 
m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 o

 
m

 !

=
=

=
=

=
=

=
=

=
P

=
=

=
=

=
=

=
=

r=
<

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

oo
 

o 
-{

 o
 o

 o
 o

 o
 o

 o
 o

 F
 o

 a

r.
) = C -{

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

f-
f-

r-
-l-

l--
l-t

-r
t-

xx
xx

xx
xx

T
(x

A
x

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

zz
zz

zz
zz

zz
zz

99
 a

 
Q

9 
99

 0
g 

0o
 0

o 
gg

 g
g 

gg
 a

 
a 

0g
 0

o 
0o

 0
o 

0o
 @

 o
o 

oo
 o

o 
oo

 o
o 

oo
 o

o 
oo

 o
o 

@
 o

o 
oo

 @
 @

 o
o 

!
!o

 (
o 

(o
 t

o 
(O

 (
o 

(o
 (

o 
(O

 r
O

 r
.(

) 
(l,

 (
c,

 (
g 

(c
) 
(o

 r
o 

(O
 (

c)
 (

c)
 (

O
 (

r)
 .

s 
(E

l 
rO

 (
o 

(o
 lo

 (
o 

lo
 (

o 
(o

 r
o 

N
q9

 a
 

a 
a 

99
 a

9 
a9

 a
 

a 
99

 a
9 

@
 >

t 
@

 @
 0

o 
@

 0
o 

oo
 m

 s
 

m
 p

 
oo

 0
o 

m
 o

o 
- 

6 
oo

 o
o 

6 
oo

 -
o 

o 
o 

o 
6 

o 
6 

6 
6 

o 
66

 
o 

66
 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
E

 6
 

-r
 5

 
6 

6 
6 

66
 

55
 

ii 
5 

E
F

r 
lr 

lr 
u)

 
lr 

lr 
F

. 
t. 

F
r 

(,
 

u 
tr

 
(.

r)
 lr

 
lr 

ts
 

t. 
t. 

lr 
lr 

ur
 

t: 
F

r 
lr 

t-
 

t-
 

t-
 

t. 
a 

lr 
t-

 
lw

 
t-

II|
III

II|
III

III
III

III
|II

III
II

u)
 (

x 
(x

 N
 

@
 0

o 
q.

} 
u,

, 
N

 
q)

 u
J 

uJ
 (

, 
(x

 (
x 

u)
 L

^.
' 

5 
{ 

o 
u)

 @
 (

x 
(x

 d
,J

 c
D

 (
b 

6 
dJ

F
 

p 
(4

 +
 

F
 

F
 

N
, 

N
 

o 
N

 
ot

 N
 

Ln
 lJ

 
lJ

 
lJ

 
ut

 
p 

ro
 t

rr
 p

 
IS

 t
w

 r
:r

 r
- 

tg
 G

 
6 

N
\?

 !
J 

+
t 

(o
 F

 
+

 
N

 
q)

 (
Jr

 
t! 

ur
 N

 
5 

N
 

N
 

N
 

O
 

lJ
 

O
 

(.
o 

N
 

O
l 

N
) 

l..
r 

lr 
lr 

S
 

r-
 

o
@

N
or

t.@
oo

 
ur

oo
 

o0
os

oE
s@

t.r
r 

{u
ra

tr
rF

to
ss

bo
rb

o 
F



oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
ts

P
F

ts
P

ts
P

ts
I.J

P
P

lJ
P

P
P

oo
o{

oo
oo

oo
o{

P
U

IN
N

N
O

IL
N

(J
I(

.r
lC

D
N

N
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

uu
ou

oo
o)

{!
{(

or
rP

N
r@

P
ct

t(
o

=
 =

 =
 fi 

5 
5 

d 
E

 =
 82

e
g*

rE
T

5F
:=

fr
r:

E

!E
E

E
H

E
qi

E
 =

E
E

=
 =

-*
il{

=
 "

i
E

 
1=

{I
 

=
] 

;6
 

P
 F

 
1

C
 

>
F

2 
i-5

E
fiE

T
E

E
N

B
T

X
fft

LN
{lJ

lJ
(,

^)
N

'5
5l

J-
IJ

JP

E
5-

ax
;Ig

lu
ai

(f
(,

v7

.J o % =I - ts s_ g f'l c x
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
m

m
|-

1-
l_

t-
t-

rr
r-

r-
t-

t-
t-

xx
i\x

xx
xx

xT
(i<

x
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
zz

zz
zz

zz
zz

zz

@
@

oo
@

@
@

@
m

@
00

00
0

(o
(o

ro
(o

(o
(o

(o
(o

ro
(o

(o
(o

@
@

@
@

@
oo

@
@

@
@

@
@

oo
oo

oo
oo

oo
oo

P
P

P
ts

P
P

U
)U

Jt
sU

.lI
JP

ttt
ttt

ttt
t

(r
(x

uJ
(p

L^
)5

 
('^

)t
su

J(
r)

(o
N

N
(J

rP
(O

N
(,

rT
N

('
N

N
N

S
}J

{N
'IO

N
S

o@
ro

o)
cD

ur
 

u)
!(

oo
)



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, October 5,2021beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, l75l
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
these matters under consideration in person, by writing, by representative, or via
Gotomeeting.com. https: / /global.gotomeeting.com /ioin /654165397.

The public can view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart
phone at https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/654165397. You can also dial in using your
phone at+l $72\ 240-3412. The Access Code for this meeting is 654-165-397. Comments can
also be emailed to planning@,elkoci[,nv.gov.

The specific item to be considered under public hearing format is:

o Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 5-21, filed by Koinonia
Construction on behalf of Lisa Turner, to allow required off street parking to be
located within the interior side yard setback to within 3 Yz' of the property line in an
R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. The property owner and applicant are proposing to build a single
family dwelling on each of the parcels with parking located in the rear, adjacent to
the alley. In order to accommodate the required off street parking, parking would
encroach into the interior side yard setbacks. The subject property is located on the
northwest side of Cedar Street, approximately 100' northeast of 4th Street. (427 &
433 Cedar Streets, APNs 001-105-0ll & 001-105-021)

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION



r 'l."' l  ,., . . . .  
z i ,  

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue Elko Nevada 89801 

(775) 777-7160 (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 

APPLICANT(s):Koinonia Construction/Luke Fitzgerald 
MAILING ADDRESS:521 Mountain City Hwy t4 Elko, NV 89801 

PHONE NO (Home) 775-303-8492 (Business) 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): Lisa Turner 

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 
MAILING ADDRESS: Same 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary): 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:001105011 ,  012 Address427, 433 Cedar St 

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision Lots 15, 16  Block 72 First Addition 

Or Parcel(s) & File No. 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1' Tuesday of 
every month). 

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. If in conjunction with a Rezone Application a 
$250.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. 

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks, 
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided. 

Elevation Plan: Elevation profile of all proposed buildings or alterations in sufficient detail to 
explain the nature of the request must be provided. 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible, 
reproducible plans 8 % " x  1 1 "  in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36 plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 
to support this Variance application. 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 1 



The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning 

ordinance: 

3-2-17(D)(2) 

1 .  The existing zoning classification of the property __ R _ 

2. The applicant shall present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are 

necessary for the Planning Commission to grant a variance: 

a) Identify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property under 
consideration. i.e., unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or 
other extraordinary situations or conditions 

Narrow Lots 

b) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions result in practical difficulty or 
undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property. 

Because of its width the lot dose not allow for the required 2 space off street parking 

c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is necessary for the applicant or owner to 
make reasonable use of the property. 

Variance will allow for there to be 2 required off street parking stalls 

which encroach on the interior side yard setback 

d) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same Land Use District. 

other lots not so narrow 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 2 



e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
general welfare. 

Variance allows for more off street parking 

f) Indicate how the variance will not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code. 

Allows for compliance 

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 

only affects parking 

h) Indicate how granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural 
resources. 

only affects parking 

3. Describe your ability (i.e. sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand) and intent to 

construct within one year as all variance approvals must commence construction within one year 

and complete construction within 18 months per City Code Section 3-2-22 F.1 . :  _ 

Parking pad to be built with building permit 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 2a through h) 

This area intentionally left blank 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 

0 I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of 

inspecting said property as part of this application process. 

E object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

0 I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

0 I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 

0 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 

best of my ability. 

Applicant/Agent Luke Fitzgerald 
(Please print or type) 

Mailing Address 521 Mountain City Hwy #4 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

Elko, NV 898901 
City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number: 775-303-8492 

Email address: elkoluke@gmail.com 

S[GNATuRE: _< 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: _Date Filed:_Fee Paid; 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 4 

sknopp
Typewritten text
5-21

sknopp
Typewritten text
08/27/2021

sknopp
Typewritten text
$500 Ck# 10503



1

Shelby Knopp

From: Cathy Laughlin

Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 8:01 AM

To: Shelby Knopp

Subject: FW: A few things

 

 

Cathy Laughlin  
City Planner 
 
(775)777-7160 ph 
(775)777-7219 fax 
claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

 
City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

 

From: Lisa Turner [mailto:lisat.lfg@gmail.com]  

Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 9:57 PM 

To: luke fitzgerald <elkoluke@gmail.com>; Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> 

Subject: Re: A few things 

 

Good evening, 

 

To City of Elko Planning/Building Dept, 

Please allow Koinonia Construction permission to apply for the variance at the Cedar St locations. 

 

Do you prefer the check for the fee be from me directly or from Koinonia. We can get that tomorrow/Friday 

9/27/2021 

 

Let me know if this suffices or if I should drop a hard copy off.  

Thank you, 

Lisa Turner 

The Luke Fitzgerald Group 

EXP Realty 

LisaT.LFG@gmail.com 

775-340-0649 

 

www.facebook.com/ElkoCityRealtor 

www.rootedinelko.com 

 

On Aug 26, 2021, at 3:48 PM, luke fitzgerald <elkoluke@gmail.com> wrote: 

 

 



2

---------- Forwarded message --------- 

From: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> 

Date: Thu, Aug 26, 2021, 3:19 PM 

Subject: A few things 

To: luke fitzgerald <elkoluke@gmail.com> 

Cc: Shelby Knopp <sknopp@elkocitynv.gov> 

 

Luke, 

We don’t consider the application a complete application until we get everything we need. We 

currently need the fee and an email or letter from Lisa stating that Koinonia has her permission 

to apply for this variance. 

Thanks, 

  

Cathy Laughlin  

City Planner 

  

(775)777-7160 ph 

(775)777-7219 fax 

claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

  

City of Elko 

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 

  



KO
IN

O
N

IA
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Luke Fitzgerald, President

A1

SITE PLAN
08.25.21

452 WALNUT

43
7 

& 
43

3 
C

ED
AR

 S
T

EL
KO

 N
EV

AD
A

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

                                    PROPOSED DESIGN CRITERIA

PUBLIC UTILITIES AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AS FOLLOWS:

 STREET FRONTAGE : 15' DAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT
 
 SIDE LOT LINES: 5.5' DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT FOR HOUSE

               SIDE LOT LINES: 3.5' DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT FOR PARKING PAD

 REAR LOT LINES: ZERO LOT LINE SET BACK

3'-6" 3'-6"

5'-6" 5'-6"

24
'-0

"

18'-0" 3'-6" 3'-6"

5'-6" 5'-6"

18'-0"

18'x24' PARKING PAD

14'X53'
BUILDING

PAD

5'
-6

" S
ID

E
SE

TB
AC

K

3'
-6

" P
ER

PO
SE

D
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K

5'
-6

" S
ID

E
SE

TB
AC

K
3'

-6
" P

ER
PO

SE
D

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

15' FRONT
SETBACK

CEDAR ST.

REAR ALLEY

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

SIDE WALK

18'x24' PARKING PAD

14'X53'
BUILDING

PAD

5'
-6

" S
ID

E
SE

TB
AC

K

3'
-6

" P
ER

PO
SE

D
SI

D
E 

SE
TB

AC
K

5'
-6

" S
ID

E
SE

TB
AC

K
3'

-6
" P

ER
PO

SE
D

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

15' FRONT
SETBACK

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

      PARCEL INFORMATION

ADDRESS        : 427 & 433 CEDAR ST.
PARCEL           : 003
APN                  : 001-105-011, 12
LOT SIZE          : .057

14'X53' BUILDING PAD

REQUIRED SETBACK

PROPOSED SETBACK

18'X24' PARKING PAD



Agenda Item # I.B.1. 

Created on 09/22/2021  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Special election of Vice-Chairperson for the remainder of 2021, and matters 

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: October 5, 2021 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  Pursuant to Section 3-4-1 (E) of the City Code, vacancies 

occurring otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the 

unexpired term. With City Council appointing Mr. Puccinelli to the City Council, it 

leaves the Vice-Chairperson position vacant. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 

8. Recommended Motion:  

 

9. Findings: 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  



1

Shelby Knopp

From: Cathy Laughlin

Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2021 12:25 PM

To: Shelby Knopp

Subject: FW: OML Workshop

 

 

Cathy Laughlin  
City Planner 
 
(775)777-7160 ph 
(775)777-7219 fax 
claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

 
City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

 

From: Neal Freitas [mailto:nealfreitas@poolpact.com]  

Sent: Monday, September 27, 2021 12:56 PM 

To: Susie Shurtz <sshurtz@elkocitynv.gov>; Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> 

Subject: OML Workshop 

 

Hi Cathy and Susie, 

Below is the link and passcode to access the Board Governance and Open Meeting Law workshop that Wayne did. The 

“O” in the passcode is a letter and not a number. On the recording, the “Board Governance” doesn’t begin until 00:15:30 

into the recording. The “OML” begins around 01:31:19 into the recording. 

 

Link: 

https://zoom.us/rec/share/i8U5dkq3rTIK8Ne28QIQuZamhomGYM6jWrRNs9B1R8Uo6sNJD52TARsGMC5zwWNr.UMrhVJ

OC2WYOWzVg?startTime=1629402388000   

Passcode: 9Z01?#UZ 

 

Let me know if you need anything else. 

Take care, 

Neal 

 

Neal Freitas, PHR, IPMA-SCP, SHRM-CP 

Senior HR Business Partner 

 

201 S. Roop Street, Suite 103 

Carson City, NV 89701 

Phone: 775.887.2240 (ext. 113) 



2

Fax: 775.887.2581 

 

 

“The information on this email transmission is general information regarding the management of various risks, including human 

resources issues.  The documents have not been reviewed by an attorney and do not constitute legal advice.  Persons with legal 

questions and specific problems are advised to consult an attorney knowledgeable in employment law.” 

 



RLUIPA

tnclusionary Zoning
Rezoning

Permanent Easement
Zoning News From Around The
Nation

1

3

4
tl

RLUIPA

Monastic organization claims rights under RLUIpA when
town halted its plans to construct a brewery

Citation: St. Paul's Foundation v. Baldacci, 2021 WL2043398 (D. Mass.
202t )

St. Paul's Foundation and orhers filed suit against Richard Baldacci and the
Town of Marblehead, Massachusetts (collecrively, the town) alleging they
violated their rights under the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons
Act (RLUIPA).

The parties each requested judgment without a trial.
DECISION: St. Paul's request for judgment without a trial denied; the

town's request granted.

St. Paul's claim didn't fall under RLUIPA.

A CLOSER LOOK

St. Paul's Foundation was an orthodox christian monastic organization lo-
cated in the town, and FatherAndrew Bushell (FatherAndrew) served as its ex-
ecutive director. Father Andrew and St. Paul's formed the shrine of St. Nicho-
las in 2017, and he served as the Guardian of St. Nicholas.

Father Andrew, an Orthodox Christian monk, learned to brew beer, which
christian monks traditionally made and served as part of their religious mission.
The beer would be served at religious meals to help evangelize others to the
orthodox christian faith and would be sold to fund St. paul's and St. Nicholas.

up until 2017, st. Paul's property in the town consisted of the Annunciation
House, which primarily served as Father Andrew's residence, but it was also
used for religious gathering and services since 2012.

In August 2017, st. Paul's bought 124 pleasant street in Marblehead. Father
Andrew intended to make the first floor into three distinct areas: I ) a beer brew-
ing facility; 2) a chapel to religious services and activities; and 3) a fe[owship
hall for additional religious programs, communal meals, and where the publii
could consume and buy the beer.

In November 2011, Father Andrew emailed Baldacci, the town's building
commissioner concerning the planned renovations. Following a meeting to
discuss the intended use of the property and renovations, Baldacci wrote Faiher
Andrew explaining the change of use, occupancy, and inspection and permit-
ting requirements lbr the renovation under the building code.

St. Paul's hired an archirect for the project. And in early 2019, Baldacci told
Father Andrew because the property required a change of use classificationffi ,rorsoN REUTER'"

Mat #42689122



Julv 10,2021 I Volume l5llssue 13

(i.e., iiom retail to assembly use), St. Paul's would need a

certificate of occupancy and certificate of inspection,
otherwise it could not sen/e fbod or drink to the public or
hold religious selices. It could, however, continue to use

the property according to its former retail and warehouse
classification, which permitted it to seli prepackaged beer
and other products.

In June 2018, St. Paul's applied for a building permit
for internal first floor renovations in accordance with
plans submitted by the architect and construction
supervisor. The plans listed proposed work to include
"chang[ing] the use of the f,rst floor from a retail to an as-

sembly A-2, add two bathrooms and A-2 hour fire rated
ceiling, a bar area, with taps and dishwasher, commercial
kitchen, walk-in cooler and concrete slab."

The plans also identified the chapel area as an As-
sembly A-3 use, which covered "[p]laces of religious wor-

Contributors

Laura Scott, Esq. . .

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the Copy-
right Clearance Center al 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers,
MA 01923, USA (978) 750-8400, http://www.copyright.com
or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman Drive,
Eagan, MN 55123, copyright.west@thomsonreuters.com.
Please outline the specific material involved, the number of
copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or format of
the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate
and authoritative information concerning the subject matter
covered; however, this publication was not necessarily pre-
pared by persons licensed to practice law in a particular
,jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal
or other professional advice and this publication is not a
substitute for the advice of an attorney. lf you require legal
or other expert advice, you should seek the services of a
competent attorney or other professional.

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson
Reuters, 610 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul,
MN 55164-0526. For subscription information: call (800)
229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing, 620
Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin,
610 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN
551 64-0526.

.*iii.i.
+;.1..-_".;fi THOM SON REUTE RS'

610 Opperman Drive
P.0. Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice @ thomson reuters.com
lssN 0514-790s

.2021 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

OuinlanrM is a Thomson Reuters brand

ship," among other non-religious uses like arcades, gal-
leries, coufirooms and fitness facilities, and the fellowship
hall where beer would be served to the public as an As-
sembly A-2 use, which "include[d] assembly uses in-
tended for food and/or drink consumption," such as

banquet halls, bars and restaurants.

The town issued a building permit authorizing the
renovations in July 2018. Shortly atier that, St. Paul's re-
lationship with the town began to sour. Baldacci issued
three letters over a three-month period in late 2018
explaining that St. Paul's was not in compliance with the

state building code, which included unauthorized work
that had taken place and occupying the space and serving
beer to the public prior to an inspection and without a

proper certificate of occupancy.

With the last letter, Baldacci put St. Paul's on notice
that he had issued a building code violation tor its conduct.
St. Paul's appealed the violation to the state Building
Code Appeals Board (BCAB), which after a February of
2019 hearing, affirmed Baldacci's actions.

In its decision, the BCAB noted that Baldacci was jus-
tilied in enforcing the building code to ensure the public's
safety and that a finding in f-avor of St. Paul's would "com-
promise lif'e safety in ways that would conflict with [Mas-
sachusetts 1awl."

In addition, the BCAB tbund that there wasn't any evi-
dence of religious discriminalion in the town's enforce-
ment of the code.

Following this, St. Paul's relationship with its architect
also went downhill, eventually leading to the architect's
decision to step away from the project. Since St. Paul's no
longer had a registered architect on the job, Baldacci told
Father Andrew construction had to stop immediately.

Another architect came on board in February 2019, and
Baldacci asked him to complete a code review to confirm
use occupancy. Baldacci said that "[ilf the scope of work
ha[d] changed or the occupancy requested [wa]s not
identical lto what] was previously permitted, then the
building department w[ouldl close [the Permit] and a new
application should fo11ow."

The architect submitted the code review, which con-
cluded the previous use designations made by the previ-
ous architect were "incorrect." He wrote it was his "intent
to carry out the proposed work in accordance with the
previously submitted plans," but that he believed the prop-
erty should be classified as a residential monastery (R-2)
with the entire first floor as an A-4 classification.

Baldacci and the architect couldn't agree on the use

designation for the Fellowship Hall, which Baldacci
maintained was A-2 (as stated in the first architect's origi-
nal plans) and what construction would follow such
designation (e.g., accessible toilet tacilities).

Then, in June 2019, Baldacci told the new architect the
town wouldn't reinstate the permit unless he submitted an

updated set ol plans for approval, agreed to the A-2 use

designation for the Fellowship Hall, or obtained a BCAB
variance allowing "accessory use" of an A-3 designation

. 2021Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 10, 2A21 I Volume 15 I lssue 13

(for service of food and drink). St. Paul's appealed
Baldacci's decision to the BCAB, and following a hear-
ing, the BCAB "generally agreed with [Baldacci's] condi-
tions" and wrote "that Baldacci and [architect's] 'very
different understandings' of the use determination 'would
lead to very diff'erent requirements' fbr the renovation,
since [the architect] 'concluded that a dift'erent Use Group
[from the previously submitted plans] (R-2) was
correct. "'

Then, St. Paul's agreed to follow the original renova-
tion plans the flrst architect had submitted and the BCAB
ordered the permit re-instated on the condition that all
submissions made to the town after January 15,2019
would be disregarded, and updated plans approved by the
town's health department would be submitted to the build-
ing department prior to final inspection of the property.

The town reinstated the permit. Subsequently, it issued
a temporary use and occupancy permit to St. Paul's but
required that it refrain from serving beer to the public until
renovations were completed and a plan submitted to the
health department was approved.

BACK TO THE COURT'S RULING

When there was no question of material fact at issue
and the undisputed f'acts showed the moving party was
entitled to judgment without a trial, the court would grant
their request as a matter o1'law. "A fact is material if it
carries with it the potential to affect the outcome of the
suit under applicable law," the court explained.

St. Paul's contended the town violated RLUIPA by
"impos[ing] or implement[ing] a land use regulation in a

manner that imposeId] a substantial burden on Iits]
religious exercise" and that there weren't any exceptions
that would have justified this, that is being "in furtherance
of a compelling governmental interest" and being "the
least restrictive means of furthering that compelling
governmental interest."

The court found the town's "conditional revocation of
the [p]ermit was not pursuant to a zoning or landmarking
law, but rather the state building code," so didn't fall under
RLUIPA. "St. Paul's has not pointed to any authority
within the First Circuit (or elsewhere) suggesting that is-
suance and revocation of building permits for renova-
tions-so that the renovations accord with universal
building codes-constitutes a 'land use regulation' or
'zoning law,' covered by RLUIPA," the court explained.

And, assuming that the town's revocation of the permit
did fall under RLUIPA, the court lound that St. Paul's
"also failed to show that such action placed a substantial
burden on its exercise of religion." Baldacci's decision
wasn't arbitrary and capricious, either, the court found.
"The undisputed factual record show[ed] . . that Balda-
cci's rationale was that St. Paul's new architect's conclu-
sion that the original plans were 'incorrect.' First, the
Town agreed with St. Paul's own architect's initial use de-
termination (i.e., A-2 fbr the fellowship hall) to issue the

[p]ermit, which led to certain renovation requirements for
minimum occupancy; but such work was not completed

prior to St. Paul's occupying the space and serving beer to
the public, which also required a building and health
inspection and certificate of occupancy," the court noted.

Assuming that the tottsn\ realcat;on {the
permit d;dfall under RLUIPA, tlte

czurtfound that St. Paul\ "alsofailed to
shozo that such action placed a

substantial burden 0n its exercise ofreligion."

Also, "St. Paul's received no such certificate, did not
complete inspection requirements, and was observed serv-
ing beer to the public, which resulted in St. Paul's receiv-
ing a building violation. The BCAB affirmed Baldacci's
actions." And, after St. Paul's hired a new architect, the
newly "proposed designations meant different renova-
tions would follow because they 'would lead to very dif-
ferent requirements' tbr occupancy."

lnclusionary Zoning

Developer asks court to order town to
return the $803,250 in payments it made
under inclusionary zoning ordinance
terms

Citation: Epcort Homesteacl, LLC v. Tow,n of Chapel
Hill, 202 I wL 2 I 38630 (M.D. N.C. 202 I )

Epcon Homestead LLC (Epcon) made a $803,250 pay-
ment under the terms of an inclusionary zoning ordinance
(IZO) with the Town of Chapel Hill adopted in 2010. The
IZO, was adopted as part of the town's Land Use Manage-
ment Ordinance (LUMO) to meet its goal of "preserving
and promoting a culturally and economically diverse
population in [the] community."

The IZO's terms applied to development projects
involving at least five single-family lots, and property
owners were required to "set aside a certain number clf
'affordable housing units,' " which could only be "ofl'ered
for sale to low-income households at below-market
prices."

Alternatively, an owner could provide a payment-in-
lieu of selling the Lrnits at below-market values according
to an amount per unit established by the town, which
would be "reserved . . for aftbrdable housing purposes."

In October 20 14, Epcon's predecessors in interest
submitted a revised Special Use Permit (SUP) for the
Courtyards at Homestead, a planned development consist-
ing of 63 dwelling units and a clubhouse/pool on 18.2
acres. In the 2014 SUP, pursuant to the IZO, the town
required l57c of the proposed dwelling units to be pro-
vided as aftbrdable, which equated to 9.45 of the 63 units.

After discussions between Epcon's affiliates and the

a:2021 Thomson Reuters



Julv 10, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 13 Zoning Bulletin

town, Epcon's affiliates opted instead for the payments-
in-lieu at a rate of $85,000 per unit, bringing the total
amount to $803,250, stating that "the substantial
payment-in lieu would provide much greater opportunity
[than setting aside units] for equal or greater units to be
built or rehabbed in a more centrally located part of the

[t]own where shopping, public transportation and job[s]
[sic] are nearby." The payment-in-lieu was "a condition
of the development with periodic payments" due prior to
every seventh certificate of occupancy Epcon sought.
And, the SUP also provided the stipulation that construc-
tion should begin by October 21,2016 and be completed
by October 27,2019.

Atter the SUP was approved, Epcon acquired real prop-
erty and moved forward with developing and selling the
63 units. The property did not have to be rczoned for the
project, given that the existing zoning district already al-
lowed for the residential density Courtyards at Homestead
required.

Epcon made its first payment of $85,000 on July 5,
2011 and made further payments of the same amount
every other month through October 2018 before a final
payment of $38,250 was made on March 20,2019 with
the final certificate of occupancy.

Epcon filed suit against the county, seeking a return of
the $803,250 under North Carolina law. The town asked
the court to dismiss the case on the grounds that Epcon's
claims were barred by the statute of limitations (SOL).

DECISION: Request for dismissed with prejudice.
The SOL had expired on Epcon's claims.
"Here, Epcon knew or had reason to know of the IZO's

mandates, including the payment-in-lieu alternative,
certainly by the time the SUP was issued in October 2014,
when it-or its affiliates-agreed to abide by the [o]rdi-
nance's terms," the court found. "Though Epcon had not
paid the f'ees and could have opted not to continue the
proiect, it had a complete cause of action at that time
because it knew it had been iniured by the payment-in-
lieu mandate in the amount of $803,250.00. Further, there
was no question that the IZO would apply to the Court-
yards at Homestead development even before the SUP
was issued."

Further, "[a] due diligence search prior to the parcels'
initial purchase, acquisition, or even a project proposal
would have revealed that 'practically all new residential
developments in the [t]own's jurisdiction,' especially in
an area already zoned for high residential density, would
be encumbered or similarly impaired by the requirements
of the IZO," the court added. "The [c]ourt does not need
to reach a conclusion about the exact date of accrual:
whether the limitations period began accruing when the
SUP was issued in2014, when Epcon acquired the real
property beginning in 2015, or at an earlier date not
articulated on the face of the Amended Complaint, the
three-year statute of limitations expired prior to Epcon
bringing its claims in October 2019," it ruled.

A CLOSER LOOK

Epcon also claimed the "continuing wrong doctrine"

applied, meaning the SOL didn't start accruing "until the
first payment-in-lieu was made." "While federal law
governs accrual of a [section 1983] claim, state law-
here, North Carolina law-governs principles of tolling
including the continuing wrong doctrine," the court
explained.

A due diligence search ?rizr to tlte parcels'

initial purcbase, acguisition, or euen a project

lroposal TDzuld haoe reaealed that practi-
cally all neu residential developments

in the [t]ozan\ jurisdiction,'especialljt in an

area alread! zonedfor high residential
density, rtsould be encumbered or similarly

impaired by the reguirements of the

IZO," the court added.

In that state, a court would "toll the statute of limita-
tions in [section 1983] cases when a plaintiff suffer[ed]
from a continuing violation of their underlying constitu-
tional right giving rise to the action." "Epcon's argument
regarding the continuing wrong doctrine fails rn part
because of how the t'ees were structured. [T]he IZO
provided that a developer could choose to either sell a
prescribed number of units at below-market values or
provide payments-in-lieu of a roughly equivalent value.
In the SUP, Epcon-or its affiliates-opted to make l0
payments-in-lieu, totaling $803,250 . . , which the
[t]own approved. Epcon made those incremental pay-
ments towards the agreed-upon total according to the
timeline in the SUP . . to receive certificates of oc-
cupancy fbr its completed homes. These were not sepa-
rate and distinct fees required by an ordinance; rather,
these were partial payments towards a predetermined total
that operated as an alternative option under the terms of
theIZO;'

THE BOTTOM LINE

"The payments were exactly what the continuing
wrong doctrine [wa]s not: the 'continual ill eft'ects from
an original violation' laid out in the SUP."

Rezoning

After plans to rebuild apartments
following destruction from Hurricane Dolly
died, housing authority filed suit against
city

Citation: Cameron County Housing Authorilln v. City of
Port Isabel, 997 F.3d 619 (5th Cir 2021)

e 2021 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin JulV 10, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 13

The Fifih U.S. Circuit has jurisdiction over ktuisiana,
Miss issippi, and Texas.

Hurricane Dolly severely damaged a public housing
development in Port Isabel, Texas. The Cameron County
Housing Authority (CCHA) operated the complex and
received conditional grant money to rebuild it, but when
the grant fell through it sued the city under the Fair Hous-
ing Act (FHA).

A CLOSER LOOK AT THE FACTS

According to the CCHA s executive director, nearly all
of the residents in the complex, which the Community
Housing & Economic Development Corporation
(CHEDC), a wholly owned CCHA public facility corpora-
tion, were Hispanic/Latino tenants. Before 2008, CHEDC
owned and CCHA operated the 16-unit Neptune Apart-
ment Complex in Port Isabel. But, when Huricane Dolly
rendered the complex uninhabitable, it sat vacant for sev-
eral years because CCHA didn't have the funds to rede-
velop the property.

In April 2014, CCHA applied for a federal disaster-
recovery grant through the Lower Rio Grande Valley
Development Council (LRGVDC) to rebuild the Neptune
Apartments as a 26-unit complex. LRGVDC approved
the project and authorized more than $1.7 million in grant
money. The funds were conditioned on CCHA s ability to
begin construction by December 1, 2015. CCHA didn't
perform due diligence to determine if the project complied
wilh Port Isabel's zoning requirements.

As a result, it eventually discovered that the project
didn't meet zoning requirements. By this time, it was Feb-
ruary 2015, and CCHA then asked the city frlr rezoning.

Rezoning requests were subject to a two-step process.
This meant CCHA had to submit the rezoning request to
the city's planning and zoning commission (P&Z Com-
mission), which would make a preliminary recommenda-
tion and send the matter to the City Commission (CC) for
a final decision. And, only the CC could make the re-
quested zoning changes.

The P&Z Commission held a public hearing on
CCHAs rezoning request in March 2015. Several Port
Isabel residents expressed their opposition because the
construction of the multi-farnily, mixed-income housing
complex would be near their single-family homes.

The P&Z Commission ultimately decided to unani-
mously deny CCHA's request. The commission's secre-
tary stressed that the decision was "absolutely not" based
on discrimination and that most of the commission's
members were Hispanic. She said the commission's rcc-
ommendation concerned "safety, congestion, density,
[and] parking" and said the proposed 26-unit apartment
design "wasn't a good plan for th[e] neighborhood."

CCHA then spent several months addressing the pub-
lic's opposition directly. They knocked on doors, handed
out flyers, and met with resident and local leaders. Based
on t'eedback gleaned, door knocking, CCHA revamped
the plan for the Neptune Apartments, which reduced the
number of housing units from 26 to 16.

CCHA then brought this plan before the P&Z
Commission. The Commission told CCHA, whose new
plan didn't require rezoning, it would consider it if CCFIA
reduced the number of units from 16 to 10.

CCHA obliged and presented the new plan for approval.
LRGVDC responded by saying the funding for the proj-
ect would be reduced by $400,000 "and must have closed
and have permitting approved by 12/1/15." LRGVDC
said that it "wlouldl need to withdraw [all] funds" if
CCHA failed to comply.

The 1O-unit plan was submitted to the city's building
inspector in October 2015. In November, the city told
CCHAit wouldn't "issue any permits for any multi-family
buildings" and "would only issue permits for four single-
family houses." At this point, CCHA returned to
LRGVDC, which stated it would stand by the original ap-
proval of the 1O-unit project and the December 1 permit-
ting deadline.

CCHA responded there wasn't any way it could close
the grant award by December I because the city had
indicated it would only approve building permits for four
single-family homes. At this point, once the December I
deadline passed, the Neptune project was dead.

THE LAWSUIT

CCHA filed suit against the city, the CC, and theP&Z
Commission. It claimed they had violated the Fair Hous-
ingAct (FHA).

The lower court granted the CC and the P&Z Commis-
sion judgment without a trial on the grounds that they
weren't independent entities that could be sued. The lower
court also granted the city judgment after {inding CCHA
lacked standing to bring the FHA claim. CCHA appealed.

DBCISION: Affirmed.
CCHA didn't have standing because the "asserted

injury wasn't fairly traceable to the city."
To assert t-ederal jurisdiction required a showing of

"standing." "The familiar elements of standing are (l) an

injury in fact that (2) is fairly traceable to the challenged
conduct of the defendant and (3) is likely to be redressed
by a favorable judicial decision," the Fifth U.S. Circuit
Court of Appeals explained. And, at the judgment-
without-a-trial phase, CCHA had to " 'set torth by aftida-
vit or other evidence specific facts'that create[d] a genu-
ine dispute as to . . standing."

The court started with the issue of "injury in fact." "To
establish injury in fact, a plaintiff must show that he or
she suffered an invasion of a legally protected interest
that is concrete and particularized and aotual or imminent,
not conjectural or hypothetical."

Here, CCHA described the injury as the inability [o use
federal grant funds to rebuilding the Neptune Aparlments.
It claimed the FHA claim wasn't "ripe" until December
2015, when it lost the federal grant funding. Therefbre,
CCHA didn't "claim injury from the reduction in
LRGVDC funding that would [have] occurred had the

[c]ity approved their alternative l6- or 10-unit plans. [It]

a 2O2l Thomson Reuters



Julv 10, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 13 Zoning Bulletin

assert[ed] instead that [it] 'did not
present cause of action' until a// the
December 1,2015;'

have a complete and
funds disappeared on

Herq CCHA described the injury as the in-
ability to usefederal grantfunds to

rebuilding the Neptune Apartrnents.

In the court's view, CCHA "had a reason to frame their
injury this way; [it] needed a theory that would make [its]
November 2017 lawsuit timely under the FHA s two-year
statute of limitations." And the complained of injury in
fact was "the total elimination of federal funding that oc-
cured on December l,2015" and "[c]ompetent summary
judgment evidence support[ed] that asserted injury."

T'his meant the court moved on to the second step in
the analysis as l"o whether standing existed: Was there a
causal link between the injury and the conduct ol which
CCHA complained?

"This connection is lacking where 'the challenged ac-
tion of the defendant [is] . . . the result of the indepen-
dent action of some third party not before the court,' " the
Fifth Circuit wrote. And, if a plaintiff's injury was "self-
inflicted" standin_s would not be present.

Here, CCHA lost the tederal funding due to "rhe
combined result of third-party actions and self-inflicted
harm." It was "LRGVDC, not the [c]ity, [that] ser the
December I deadline . . to begin construction. [CCHA]
let hall' of th[e] allotted time evaporate before .

requestling] rezoning. That was not the [c]ity's fault," the
court found.

Also, "[w]hen the P&Z [c]ommission recommended
denying [CCHA's] request, [it] did not pursue a f'avorable
ruling fiorn the [CC]." Instead, CCHA "opted instead ro
conduct a community-engagement eftbrt and submit a

new plan to theP&Z Commission three months later. On
the day of the P&Z Commission's scheduled hearing to
consider the revised plan, [CCHA] withdrew it. Then [ir]
waited until September 20 l5 to present a new l6-unit plan
to [c]ity oflicials. At that point, 17 months had passed
since LRGVDC conditionally granted funding . . . And
three months remained until the December I deadline.
ICCHA wasl in a pinch-but it was a pinch of [its] (and
LRGVDC's) own making."

THE BOTTOM LINE

The city had "assumed a more active role during the
last few months of [CCHA s] scramble to secure funding:
[c]ity olficials rejected the 16-unit plan in September and
rejected a subsequent l0-unit plan in November. But it's
also irrelevant," the court ruled. CCHA had "repeatedly
disclaimed any injury predating the complete loss of funds
that occurred on December l. And when we fbcus on that
December I injury, it's clear the [c]ity had nothing to do
with it. In fact, the [c]iry rook sreps to help [CCHA] avoid
the[] asserted in-jury by agreeing to approve a fbur-unit

project. It was LRGVDC that sank the four-unit proposal,
and it was LRGVDC that enforced the December I

deadline," the court added. Therefore, CCHA s "injury is
not fairly traceable to the [c]ity," so it was entitled to
judgment.

Permanent Easement

Lawsuit follows government's eminent
domain action to impose permanent
easement on undeveloped land near
military base

Citation: United Stqtes v. 269 Acres, More or Less, kt-
cated in Beaufort County South Carolina, 995 F.3d 152
(4th Cir 2021 )

The Fourth U.S. Circuit hos jurisdictiott ot,er Marl,-
Land, Nonh Corolina, South Cqrolina, Virgin.ia, and West
Virginia.

A lower court awarded landowners $4.4 rnillion after
the government took a permanent easement on their land
located near a U.S. Marine Corps airbase in Beaufort.
South Carolina. The court also apportioned attorney's t'ees
and court costs.

The government challenged the amount the court
awarded in compensation and the attorney's fee award.
The landowners cross-appealed disputing the apporrion-
ment of the attorney's fees.

DECISION: Affirmed in part; reversed in part.
While the Fourth U.S. Circuit Courr of Appeals con-

cluded it "might have decided" the case ditTerently if
reviewing it on the merits, it owed the lower court "defer-
ence" and found its award to be .just compensation.
However, the court had "legally erred in awarding at-
torney's fees to the fi]andowners as the 'prevailing party'
in this litigation."

A CLOSER LOOK

The Fourth Circuit fbund rhat:

o The lower court had not clearly erred by crediting
the testimony of the landowners' experr appraiser
regarding comparable land sales for purposes of
determining iust compensation; and

o It also didn't ciearly err in finding the landowners
had shown a non-speculative basis lor valuing the
land at the highest and best use as rcsidential and
industrial development.

But, the landowners weren't entitled to attomey's f'ees.
Generally, each party was responsible tbr its own litiga-
tion costs.

However "the Equal Access to Justice Act deviate[d]
from this rule by rendering 'the United States liable fbr
attorney's fees for which it would not otherwise be
liable.' " "Under the Act, the court must award attorney's

a 2021 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 10, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue '13

fees and other litigation costs to the private party if: (1)
the claimant is an eligible individual with a net worth of
less than '$2,000,000 at the time the civil action was filed'
and (2) the claimant is the 'prevailing party' in the litiga-
tion unless (3) the district court finds that the government's
position was 'substantially justified' or 'special circum-
stances make an award unjust.' "

Here, the parties agreed that only one of the landown-
ers was eligible to receive attomeys' fees and costs given
the other landowners' net worth. The dispute, instead,
focused on whether the landowners were the prevailing
party.

"In an eminent-domain proceeding, the 'prevailing
party' is 'the party whose highest trial valuation of the
property is closest to the final judgment,' " the court
explained.

THE BOTTOM LINE

The landowners had claimed the just compensation
would have been around $9.6 million. But, "the govern-
ment's $937,800 value [wa]s closer to the district court's
final award of $4.4 million, [so] the government, not the

[]andowners, [wa]s the 'prevailing party' in this litiga-
tion," the court noted. Therefore, the court reversed this
part of the lower court's judgment awarding attorneys'
fees and costs to the landowners.

CASE NOTE

"Determining 'just compensation'often turns on highly
factual determinations, such as the identification of com-
parable land sales, the state and growth potential of the
local economy, and the credibility of dueling experts and
various reports. Comparing and weighing this mountain
ofevidence can be difficult," the court explained.

Tbe landowners had claimed thejust
czrn?ensation zuottld haoe been arzund ff9.6
million. But, "the glaernment\ #937,800

aalue [*o]t closer to the district czurt's

fnal award of $+.+ million, [soJ the goaern-
menfi not the plandoruners, [zuaJs the

preaailing party' in this litigation," the court

noted.

"Those closest to the ground, who live near the rele-
vant areas and can hear the witnesses'testimony firsthand,
are in the best position to evaluate the evidence. Commis-
sions and district courts are there. We are not," the Fourth
Circuit added.

Zoning News From
Around The Nation

Georgia

Local diversity and inclusion task force to recommend
zoning ordinance requiring affordable housing

Sandy Springs, Georgia's Diversity and Inclusion Task
Force recently said it planned to recommend a zoning
ordinance amendment requiring affordable housing for
new construction, the Sandy Springs Reporter reported.

In 2017 , Sandy Springs' city council had excluded an
inclusionary zoning update from code amendments, the
news outlet reported. The task force was forced following
Black Lives Matter protests in the city in 2020, and
through its subcommittees, recommendations to expand
distribution of local newspapers to renters and to add
translation services to city meetings and its documents
have also been made, the Reporter noted.

Elsewhere in Georgia, a change has been approved for
the Dunwoody Planned Development (PD) special zoning
district, which permits development that would otherwise
be banned under the local zoning code, the Reporter
explained. It's a step meant to streamline the zoning pro-
cess, a city official told the news outlet, which noted there
will be a 4.5-acre minimum land requirement for PD
within Dunwoody's areas including suburban
neighborhoods.

Source: reDo rte rnew sptpers.net

lowa

Ames'new zoning tool promotes housing
development

Recently Ames, Iowa's City Council was close to ap-
proving a new planned unit development zone focused on
promoting housing development, the Ames Tribune
reported. The change would decrease slot sizes and low-
ers setbacks for some development projects in the city.

In other news, the City of Ames' planning division
recently announced it was accepting applications for a
Downtown FaEade Grant. "Businesses and building own-
ers within the Downtown Service Center could qualify for
a dollar-fbr-dollar matching grant of up to $15,000 for
fagade improvements. In addition, businesses and build-
ing owners who improve their faqades and are within the
Downtown Urban Revitalization Area may be eligible for
abatement of property taxes on the assessed value of new
improvements," it stated.

Sources: amest rib. c ont; c ity ofame s.o rg

Massachusetts

Newton city council approves measure restricting
where firearms businesses can operate

Restrictive zoning rules have been approved in Newton
that will place stricter operational limits on gun stores in
that city, The Boston Globe reported recently.

City councilors, with a 23-l vote, approved the mea-

o 2021 Thomson Reuters



Julv 10, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 13 Zoning Bulletin

sure following a push to block a firearms store called
Newton Firearms from opening at a location close to
homes, restaurants, and schools, the news outlet reported.

The measure means that firearms businesses will be
subiect to buffer zones so they cannot be immediately
adjacent to hospitals, libraries, schools, and playgrounds,
The Globe reported.

Source: bo stonglobe. corn

New Mexico

The New Mexico Regulation & Licensing Department
(NMRLD) recently announced a rule hearing would be
taking place on proposed draft rules on "the
processing, approval, and denial of license
applications for cannabis producers in New Mexico."
"The rule hearing will also consider the regulation of
cannabis licensees, proposed fees for corresponding
license types, the plant count, canopy or square
footage limit for each license type, and per-plant fees
applied to licensees that are growing more than 200
cannabis plants," NMRLD stated.

According to the notice of proposed rulemaking, the
hearing was also going to be an opportunity to "consider
the plant count, canopy or square lootage limit for each
Iicense type (excluding Iicenses tor integrated cannabis
microbusinesses or cannabis producer microbusinesses),
as well as per-plant f-ees applied to licensees growing in
excess ol'200 plants."

To view the proposed drafi rules, visit ccd.rld.state.nm.
us/wp-content/uploads/202 1 /05/Malz-25 -202 1 -Cannabis-
Control-Division-Proposed-Rules.pdf. For the notice of
proposed rulemaking, vi sit ccd.rld.state. nm.us/wp-conten
t/uploads/202 1/05/Notice-of-Proposed-Rulemaking-and-
Hearine-Cannabis-Regulation-Act.pdf. And, fbr more in-
lbrmation on the reference materials NMRLD used in
dratting the proposed rules, visit ccd.rld.state.nm.us/wp-c
ontent/uploads/202 I /O5/NMAC-20 I 9-MCP-FK-Report.
pdI.

Source : c cd. rl d. st ote.nm. us

Pennsylvania

Swimming pools, hedges, and off-street parking some
of the recommendations Williamsport's economic
revitalization committee is focused on

The Williamsport economic revitalization commitree
recently recommended zoning ordinance amendment
concerning off-street parking, hedges, and swimming
pools attbcting Pennsylvania College of Technology and
Lycoming College, the Williantsport Sun-Gazette
reported. Pool setbacks, obstructed views, and line of
si-9ht concerning motorists and bikers in the areas where
hedges have been proposed.

Source: t rg*q4:a
fennessee

Zoning ordinance amendment being considered in
Livingston

At a recent municipal planning commission meeting in

May 2021 , the city of Livingston, Tennessee discussed
whether its zoning ordinance should be updated concem-
ing multi-family use in its Local Commercial (C-l)
district. The discussion of an amendment centered around
a contradiction found in the original language of the
ordinance. The Livingston Enterprise reported recently.

The news outlet said confusion stems liom the fact that
multi-family use in the C-l district is a permitted use but
also a use permitted on appeal.

Source : I iy i rt gst one nte rp ri se. trc I

Wisconsin

Some residents of Madison opposed to zoning code
changes

To address housing gaps, the City of Madison is consid-
ering zoning code amendments that would make it faster
and easier fbr developers of smaller-scale affordable hous-
ing projects to get the green light, The Cap Times reported
recently. But, some neighborhood associations and resi-
dents are opposed to it, the news outlet noted. In their
view the amendments would take away their right to voice
concerns on development impacting the places they live.

In other news out of Madison, the city's mayor, Satya
Rhodes-Conway announced the Iaunch of a policy to curb
tralfic congestion and related emissions. The draft policy,
Transportation Demand Management (TDM), was intro-
duced to the city's plan commission in May 2021, the
press release stated. "TDM refers to a range of strategies
that can help support people to travel by means other than
a single-occupant vehicles. Examples of TDM strategies
include adding bike lockers and showers to an office
building, giving every resident or worker a free bus pass,
organizing a vanpool program for workers, and many
others. Madison's current proposal is to require new
developments to make investments in TDM strategies
through a clear. flexible and predictable path," it stated.

To learn more about Madison's TDM, visit cityolmadis
on.com/transportation/initiatives/transportation-denrand-
management. There, it explains that "[u]nder the city's
current land use ordinances, TDM measures ate some-
times required for conditional uses, planned develop-
ments, big box stores, and 'employment campus' and
'mixed use center' districts." "Current TDM r-equirements
in the city help limit rhe traffic impacts from develop-
ment, but some mitigation of those impacts might still be
required. City statf and partners are considering reforms
to standardize this process and implernent more consis-
tent requirements through a city-wide TDM program."

The landing page also includes links to data sources
concerning proposed measurements, weights and triggers
tbr TDM development inclusion, project documents re-
lated to the developmenr of Madison's TDM program,
and an outline of the proposed TDM process timelines.

Sources: m trd is on. com; c ity oftnadisotr. c om

a 2021 Thomson Reuters



Code Enforcement
Permitted Use

Permittjng, l

RLUIPA

Zoning'News From Around The
Nation

1

3
4
5

Code Enforcement

Resident sues city and its officials after being denied the
right to park modular classrooms on his property

Citation: Singleton v. City of Georgetown, 2021 WL 1929366 (D.S.C. 2021)
willie Singleton filed suit against the city of Georgetown, south carolina, al-

leging constitutional violations stemming from a code-enforcement violation.
The u.S. District Court for the District of South carolina was tasked with
determining whether the city was entitled to judgment without a trial.

DECISION: Request for judgment granted.
There wasn't evidence to support Singleton's claims.
The case involved five modular classrooms that Singleton had bought from

the Johnsonville School District and moved them to lots he owned in the city.
Before moving them over, he and the city administrator (cA) discussed modular
building requirements.

The cA told Singleton that he had to provide a site plan from an engineeq so
he acquired and presented a plan from an engineer to 'Join the two buildings as
required by the [c]ity offlcial."

Then, Singleton proceeded with placing two of the buildings on his property.
The CA issued a stop-work order after determining the project was in vioiation
of the local code, and Singleton claimed the cA wouldn't tell him which provi-
sion had been violated and that he would have to "look it up."

Subsequently, the city provided Singleton with a copy of a state law provision.
He responded by providing a copy of another state law provision and stating that
the building was constructed prior to January l, 2005, and therefore not subject
to the law the city had cited.

The cA reached out to singleton and let him know what would be needed
before a building permit could be issued. Thereafter, he learned that Singleton
had placed a couple of the modular buildings on a corner lot. This, he surmised
was a code violation.

In May 2018, a code enfbrcement officer issued a letter stating that Singleton
was in violation and that property needed to be cleaned due to overgrowth. He
claimed he was the only landowner called out for this and that several other lots
in the area were currently overgrown but those residents were given an
ultimatum to cut back or be fined.

The cA then reached out to the state's Building code Commission requesting
guidance on the situation, and, in response, he was instructed to treat the modular
buildings as "site built buildings." After thar, the cA forwarded Singleton a let-
ter again setting out the requirements for the issuance of a building permit. And,:ij;i.:i nro r,,rsoN REUTERs'

Mat #42689125



Julv 25, 2021 I Volume '15 I lssue 14 Zoning Bulletin

after the city denied Singleton's request for a building
permit, he was given the opportunity to appeal but never
did.

Eventually, the parties reached an agreement about one
of the lots and Singleton was granted a permit based on
compliance with city requirements.

That didn't stop Singleton from f,ling suit against the
city, or the CA, though, claiming his rights under the Equal
Protection Clause of the Constitution had been violated.

THE COURT'S RATIONALE

Singleton claimed he was the victim of selective en-
fbrcement of the city's ordinances and zoning laws, which
violated his equal protection rights under the Fourteenth
Amendment. The CA and the city contended they were
entitled to.iudgment without a trial because there was at

Contributors

: . ,t, ,i,.,,!ayq1 Sco1t, Esq.

For authorization to :photocopy, please contact the Copy-
right Clearancri Genter at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers,
MA 01923, USA (978) 750-8400, http://wwwcopyright.com
or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman Drive,
Eagan, MN 55123, copyright.west@thomsonreuters.com.
Please outline the specific material involved, the number of
copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or format of
the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate
and authoritative information concerning the subject matter
covered; however, this publication was not necessarily pre-
pared by persons licensed to practice law in a particular
jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal
or other professional advice and this publication is not a
substitute for the advice of an attorney. lf you require legal
or other exped advice, you should seek the services of a
competent attorney or other professional.

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson
Reuters, 610 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul,
MN 55164-0526. For subscription information: call (800)
229-2084, or'write to West, Credit Order Processing, 620
Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin,
610 Opperman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN
551 64-0526.

+ij::..;i.:;i THO M SO N RE UTE RS'.

610 Opperman Drive
P.0. Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-BOO-229-2084

email : west.customerservice @thomsonreuters.com
lssN 0514-7905

02021 Thomson Fleuters
All Rights Reserved

QuinlanrM is a Thomson Reuters brand

least one instance "where a property owner brought in a

modular building which had previously been used a
classroom and . . [Singleton] had been treated the same
as these individuals." The CA tesrified rhat rhe individual,
who was of the same race as Singleton, had been required
to provide engineered drawings fbr the foundations.

THE BOTTOM LINE

"The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amend-
ment provide[d] that no state shall 'deny to any person
within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.' "
"Its central mandate is racial neutrality in governmental
decision making," the court explained.

Therefbre, to bring "a viable equal protection claim, the
plaintifi must establish 'that the defendant's actions had a
discriminatory et'tect and were motivated by a discrimina-
tory purpose.' " Here, Singleton couldn't show any "requi-
site discriminatory intent with more than mere conclusory
assertions" let alone that discrimination was the city and
the CA's "sole motive."

CASE NOTE

Singleton also claimed that several city officials were
liable for constitutional violations under the doctrine of
"respondeat superior." For instance, he claimed the CA's
conduct could be imputed to the mayor who knew he had
been giving him a hard time. He also claimed city council-
ors could be held liable because they didn't take any ac-
tion after hearing his complaints about the CA.

To bring "a aiable eqltal?rotection claim, the

plaintiff mus t estab lish'tltat the defendant s

actizns bad a discriminatory ffict and
uere motitlated fu a discriminatory

purpose.'"

But, the court tbund, Singleton didn't present any evi-
dence that these olficials' "actions or inactions rose to the
level of deliberate indifference or that there was a causal
link between [their] inaction and [his] alleged constitu-
tional injury."

The court also noted that a section 1 983 claim couldn't
be based on respondeat superior. But it noted, "a supervi-
sory official c[ould] be held liable in certain circumstances
for the constitutional injuries inflicted by their
subordinates." To establish supervisory liability required a
showing that:

o "the supervisor had actual or constructive knowledge
that his subordinate was engaged in conduct that
posed 'a pervasive and unreasonable risk' of consti-
tutional injury to citizens like the [Singleton]";

o "the supervisor's response to that knowledge was so
inadequate as to show 'deliberate indifference to or
tacit authorization of the alleged offensive prac-
tices' "; and

. 2021 Thomson Reuters



. "there was an 'afhrmative causal link' between the
supervisor's inaction and the particular constitutional
injury suft'ered by [Singleton]."

Here, the officials were entitled to .iudgment because*no reasonable juror could find that, generally speaking,
[they] w[ere] personally engaged in conduct that posed ;a

pervasive and unreasonable risk' of constitutional injury
to citizens like [Singleton]."

Practically Speaking:

Singleton's equaL protection clause clairufailed becatrse to state
a valid claitn, he had to "set forth specifc factual allegatiorts
that are probative of an improper motive, " yvhich he J'ailed to clo.

Permitted Use

State appeals court weighs in on whether
proposed cannabis cultivation and
manufacturing facilities should be allowed

Citation: Valley Green Grow, lnc. v. Tou.'rt of Churlton,
99 Mass. App. Ct. 670, 2021 WL 2345585 (2021 )

Should one of the country's biggest proposed cannabis
cultivation and manufacturing lacilities be permitted to
operate in a town of about 12,000 residents? That's the
question the Appeals Court of Massachusetts took on in a
recently decided case.

THE FACTS

The Town of Charlton, Massachusetts' planning board
found a proposed marijuana facility constituted ,.light
manufacturing" as the term was used in the town's zoning
bylaw. As a result, it was not allowed use in the agricul-
tural and commercial business districts where the proposed
development site was located.

The Massachusetts Land Court (MLC) concluded the
proposed use was "an indoor commercial horticulture/
floriculture establishment (e.g., greenhouse) use allowed
by right" in the two zoning districts. As a result, it granted
judgment without a trial to the plaintiff, Valley Green
Grow Inc. (VGG). The town appealed.

DECISION: Affirmed.
The planning board exceeded its authority "by denying

site plan review on the ground that the proposed use was
not permitted as of right." the appeals court ruled.

The zoning enforcement officer (ZEO) had concludecl
on three occasions that VGG's proposed use would be
permitted by right. "That opinion, though not conrrolling.
carrieId] weight, as the bylaw charges the ZEO with
enforcing the bylaw," the court explained. "The ZEO's af-
ficiavit specifically state[d] that '[t]hese types of accessory
uses,' including the cogeneration facility,'[we]re similar
to other ancillary uses accessory to agricultural uses in
lthe town].' " And, there wasn't any evidence to the
contrary.

THE BOTTOM LINE

While it was true that "the bylaw <iirect[ed] the plan-
ning board, in the ordinary course, to ensure compliance
with the bylaw," it was "clear that neither the town nor
VGG, in executing the development agreement and agree-
ing to site plan approval by the planning board, intended
to have the planning board revisit whether the proposed
use was allowed as of right." The board of selectmen on
advice of town counsel and the ZEO had made that
determination.

It uas "clear tbat ne;ther tbe town nor VGG,

in executing the deaelopment agreement

and agreeing to site plan approoal by
the planning board, intended to haoe the

planning board reaisit wltetlter the proposed

use TDas alloztsed as {right."

"The circumstances suggest[ed] that the project was
referred to the plannin,g board fbr site plan review of a use
permitted as of right," the court wrote. This was a case
where "the town [wa]s speaking with two competing
v<rices, one of which, the ZEO, [wa]s the party charged
with enforcing the bylaw," the court noted, .,In these
unique circumstances it is dilficult to see why we would
defer to the planning board's contrary concluiion. We are
quite cornfortable concluding that we need not defer to the
planning board's opinion," it ruled.

A CLOSER LOOK

The site in controversy consisted of about 95 acres ol-
land that for decades had been used as a commercial ftuit
orchard. The orchard's operations traditionally included
cultivating apples for sale and processing apples to pro-
duce alcoholic and food products on the site. The site also
housed production facilities, buildings, and equiprnent to
juice, press, bake, process, ferment, and bottle the fruit for
sale as wine, cider, juice, pies, jellies, and jam.

VGG proposed a one-million square foot indoor mari-
.juana growin-q and processing facility, which included:

o an 860,000 square feet closed greenhouse;

r a 130,000 square foot postharvest processing facil-
ity; and

r a 10,000 squal'e foot cogeneration facility.
According to the site plan application, in total, build-

ings wound cover about 23 of the approximate 95-acre
parcel. And the MLC had found that 867c of rhe proposed
project would "be . . dedicated ro . . indoor com-
mercial horticulture-"

e 2021Thomson Reuters



Julv 25, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 14 Zoning Bulletin

Permitting

Residents sue village after their
basements flood, they claim it shouldn't
have granted the construction permits

Citation: Craig Billie, et al, Plaintiffs, r'. Village of
Channahon, et al, Defendants. Additional Party Names:
Andrew Kiltl, Chantal Host, David Silverman, Dawn Bil-
lie, Donald Mladic, Donna Sabo, Edward Dolezal, Gerard
Sabo, James Bowden, Janet Hopman, Janet Schumacher,
Jeffrey D. Corso, Joseph Cook, Jr., Mark Scaggs, Patricict
Perinar Rebecca Stonitsch, Samuel Greco, Sara DeLucio,
Scott McMilLian, Scott Slocum, Jr, Sharon Kittl, Susan
Mladic, Thomas Durkin, Thomas,202l WL2311966 (N.D.
ilt. 2021)

Several residents alleged the Village of Channahon, Illi-
nois (the village) violated their constitutional rights by
passing Ordinance 103 in 1992, which required the village
to "comply with the rules and regulations of the National
Flood Insurance Program" (NFIP). Thomas Pahnke, the
village's building and zoning offlcer, was tasked with
enforcing this ordinance by "[e]nsur[ing] that all develop-
ment activities within the [flood-prone areas] of the juris-
diction of the [v]illage met the requirements" of the
ordinance. He was also responsible for inspecting all
development projects befbre, during, and after construc-
tion to confirm the proper elevation of the structure and
overall compliance with the ordinance.

Also in 1992, rhe village's board of trustees (board) ap-
proved construction of the Indian Trails North subdivision.
Months later, the village's attorney either drafted or ap-
proved an agreement annexing the subdivision to the vil-
lage, and on November 16,1992, the board approved that
annexation.

Between September 1993 and August 1994, building
permit applications were f,led for each of the plaintiffs'
homes. Neither the village nor any of its officials required
any hydrological analyses, any special inspection, permit-
ting, or certification for construction in flood-prone areas,
and the plaintiffs asserted that their actions were not in
compliance with the t'ederal regulations that Ordinance
703 was designed to implement.

Each of the plaintiffs was granted a building permit.
And in 1996, the basements of the Indian Trails dwellings
flooded for the first time.

Representatives from the Federal Emergency Manage-
ment Agency (FEMA) visited the flood site, who the
plaintiffs alleged said the basement floor elevations on the
dwellings may have been too deep.

In 1998, the village asked FEMA to remove several
empty Indian Trails lots from the Special Flood Hazard
Area (SFHA) so they could be developed. FEMA ap-
proved the request in part tbr certain lots, but it denied the
request with respect to others-which the plaintiffs
contended put the village on notice that lots l1 through l7
had basement floor elevations that were too deep and

violated Ordinance 703. They also claimed that the village
and its offlcials, therefore, knew that their homes "would
continue to have basement flooding" and that despite hav-
ing this knowledge, the village and its officials engaged in
a "conspiracy of silence" and failed to alert them or their
predecessors in interest of the danger of continued
flooding.

After flooding occurred in 2001, 2001 , and 2008, Indian
Trails residents asked the village to look into the problem.
It hired an engineering firm to root out the cause of their
"significant basement flooding" and to "propose potential
solutions."

The report indicated that the flooding was due to a
combination of factors including the low elevations of the
basements, downstream impediments to water flow at the
Channahon Dam, and porous soil were responsible for the
flooding. The report did not, however, investigate the
permitting process or the conduct of any village officials.
It merely recommended that the village work with the Illi-
nois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) to divert
water from the dam and that the village should construct a
concrete barrier to stop surface runoff from reaching the
water table.

In October 2009, the board voted to have the engineer-
ing firm create a hydraulic model of these proposed
solutions. AIso, that month, one of the residents wrote to
the village president asking the village to buy their home
on the grounds that it had approved construction of a base-
ment that was deeper than 524 feet base flood elevation.
The president replied that to the best of his knowledge the
lot had only been subject to state regulations at the time of
construction, but the plaintiff claimed these assertions
were tiaudulent.

Then, in 2012, another resident contacted the president
to ask about the status of the proposed Channahon Dam
pro.iect. The president responded that the project, a col-
laboration with the IDNR, would "increase the level of
protection for the siudy area basements." He also noted
that the puryose of the 2009 report was to "determine the
cause and the feasibility of mitigating the problem." And
he noted that the village had granted permits to the IDNR
for the construction of dam improvements but the IDNR
had not made any improvements and the permits had
lapsed. He also stated the village would reissue them
"without delay" upon the IDNR's request.

Following flooding in 2013 and 2011, residents com-
plained that the village hadn't made any progress toward
addressing the basement-flooding issue. After another
flood occurred in 2018 and the Army Corps of Engineers
released a multi-year study within which it concluded it
would not build the proposed concrete barrier to protect
the Indian Trails subdivision because it did not meet
certain cost-benefit requirements, the residents filed suit.
They claimed the village hadn't complied with federal
flood-plain management regulations (44 C.F.R. section
60.3) when permitting the construction of their homes.

The village and its offlcials (collectively, the village)
requested dismissal of the lawsuit.

DECISION: Request for dismissal granted.

'o 2021 Thomson Reuters



Zoning Bulletin July 25, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 14

The plaintiffs failed to assert valid claims under the Tak-
ings Clause.

The Fifth Amendment's Takings Clause "caution[ed]
that 'private property [shall not] be taken tbr public use,
without just compensation.' " The clause was meant to
"bar [the] [g]overnment from forcing some people alone
to bear public burdens which, in all fairness and justice,
should be borne by the public as a whole," the court noted,
citing Arkansas Game & Fish Commission v. tJnited
States, which the Supreme Court had decided in2012.

In Arkansas, the Court acknowledged "that certain
government actions [we]re always a taking, such as the
'permanent physical occupation of property' and the
implementation of 'a regulation that permanently re-
quire[d] a property owner to sacrifice all economically
beneficial uses of his or her land.' " However, "most tak-
ings claims turn on situation-speciflc factual inquiries."

Here, the plaintiffs argued that under Arkansas, they
adequately pleaded a Fifth Amendmenr taking. They
contended that because the Court had ruled in Arkansas
"that recurrent floodings, even if of finite duration, [we]re
not categorically exempt from Takings Clause liability,"
they had a valid claim. "But it does not necessarily follow
that [they] stateldl a plausible claim againsr rhe [village],"
the court concluded.

This case could be differentiated from Arkansa.s because
the government in that case "caused the flooding: first by
constructing the dam then by altering the release of water
from the dam." Here, while the "flooding was arguably
foreseeable when . . Pahnke granted them the permits
they requested without following Ordinance 703," the vil-
lage did "not induce the flooding." "They permitted the[m]
and their predecessors in interest to build on their own
property."

This case czuld be dffirentiatedfrom
Arkansas because the gooernrnent in that case

"caused t/)e j7zoding:1lrst by constructing

tbe dam then by altering the release of zaater

_fro* the dam."

Since the government in this case didn't induce a "tak-
ing," the plaintiffs failed to state a claim and rheir case
was dismissed.

The case cited is Arkansas Game and Fish Com'n v.

U.5., 568 U.S.23, 133 S. Ct.5tt, 184 L. Ed.2d4tZ,75
Env't. Rep. Cas. (BNA) 1417 (2012).

Case Note:

The residents requested a buyottt itt 2020 but tlrc village denied
it. At that point they filed suit against the village and irs officials.

RLUIPA

Religious corporation claims county
unlawfully suspended its expansion due to
residential zoning requirement violation

Citation: Friends of Lubavitch v. Baltimore County,
Maryland, 2021 WL2260287 (D. Md. 2021)

Friends of Lubavitch (FoL) was a religious corporation
formed to support the global Orthodox Jewish Chabad-
Lubavitch movement in Maryland and to establish Chabad
centers, a rabbinical school, and a primary school. Its
religious leaders administered one of those centers, the
Towson Chabad House (CH), located at 14 Aigburth Road
in Towson, Maryland, which FoL purchased in September
2008 and served Orthodox Jewish students and alumni of
the nearby Towson University and Goucher College in
Baltimore County, Maryland.

FoL sought to expand CH in 2011. But, the Baltimore
County, Maryland, Baltimore County Department of Plan-
ning, and Baltimore County Board of Appeals (collec-
tively, the county) temporarily suspended the expansion
after finding it had violated residential zoning
requirements.

The county, however, eventually granted FoL a build-
ing permit to begin construction in 2016. But, construction
stalled when a neighbor and neighborhood organization
sued FoL in a county court to enforce a covenant contained
in the CH deed that imposed a "setback" requirement that
would prohibit the expansion.

After a bench trial in2017, a judge ordered the removal
of the expansion insofar as it violated the covenant. In a
subsequent proceeding thejudge ordered the expansion be
"razed."

FoL sued the county, alleging violations under the
Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act
(RLUIPA) (Counts I-V) as well as consrirurional
violations.

The county court dismissed FoL's complaint, and it filed
a request for reconsideration.

DECISION: Request denied.

FoL's request to amend the complaint to add general-
ized allegations that "no secular organization ha[d] been
subjected to the treatment they experienced in conjunction
with attempting to build the [e]xpansion," didn't fly wirh
the court. "To prevail on an equal terms claim, . . a
plaintiff 'must identity a similarly situated comparator,"'
the court noted.

Here, FoL failed to do just thar. "Accordingly, [its] . . .

proposed Amended Complaint [wa]s futile to the extent it
continue[d] to assert equal terms RLUIPA claims against
[the c]ounty."

A CLOSER LOOK

Under RLUIPA, it was unlawfll for the government to
"impose or implement a land use regulation that discrimi-

o 2021 Thomson Reuters



Julv 25, 2021 I Volume 15 I lssue '14 Zoning Bulletin

nate[d] against any assembly or institution on the basis of
religion or religions denomination." And that provision
"incorporate[d] elements of an equal protection analysis."
This meant, FoL would have needed to show that "the
government decision was motivated at least in part by
discriminatory intent, which [wa]s evaluated usin_e the
'sensitive inquiry' established in" a case the Supreme
Court decided in 1971-Villctge of Arlingtott Heights v.

Metropolitan Housing, Developntent Corp.

THE BOTTOM LINE

A court could analyze several factors before deciding
whether a decision-making body had a discriminatory
intent, including:

o "evidence of a 'consistent pattern' of actions by the
decision-making body disparately impacting mem-
bers of a particular class of persons";

o "historical background ofthe decision, which [could]
take into account any history o1'discrimination by
the decision-making body or the.lurisdiction it repre-
sentled]";

o "the specific sequence of events leading up to the
particular decision being challenged, including any
significant departures from normal procedures"; and

. "contemporary statements by decisionmakers on the
record or in minutes of their meetings."

Church files suit after village denies
request to build in light industrial zone

Citation: Wesleyut Methodist Church of Canisteo v. Vil-
lage of Canisteo, 792 F. Supp. 2d 667 (W.D. N.Y. 2011)

Recently, the U.S. District Court lor the Western District
of New York took up the issue of whether the Village of
Canisteo, New York (the village), violated the Religious
Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act (RLUIPA) by
denying a church's request for a building permit in an area
zoned as light industrial.

The village asked the court to dismiss the lawsuit for
lailure to state a claim.

DECISION: Request for dismissal granted.

The church didn't state a claim on which relief could be
granted under RLUIPA.

A CLOSER LOOK

This case involved the Wesleyan Methodist Church of
Canisteo (WMCC), a religious corporation that owned
property in the village, on which it operated a church and
conducts church-related activities. Its current facilities
weren't adequate for its needs, though. Specifically, the
parking lot was too small, and the main worship facility
was overcrowded.

WMCC came up with three potential ways to address
the overcrowding:

I) construct new buildings at its current location,

2) buy properties adjacent to the current church,
demolishing them, and constructing new buildings;
and

3) purchase vacant land to construct new church facil-
ities, which is the option it chose.

Atier identifying a parcel of land to build its new facili-
ties on, WMCC reached out to the village to request a
rezoning so it could operate in the light-industrial zone.
The village generally permitted use there to manufactur-
ing, fbod industries, laundry and dry cleaning, warehous-
ing. and aulomotive scrvices.

The plannin-e board initially denied WMCC's requesr
for a rezoning/special use pemtit, explaining that it needed
to conduct a map and site-plan review. It also said it
needed to address potential environmental issues.

In 2008, WMCC obtained a "Site Feasibility Study" for
the proposed church project, which it presented to the
planning board. The planning board still recommended
denying WMCC's request to re-zone the property, citing
its concerns that re-zoning the area would "ultimately
change . . the entire Light Industrial District," and
observing that there was a "very small amount oF suitable
land within village limits for lighr industrial use."

The village told WMCC while it wouldn'r re-zone rhe
property, it could apply for a variance, which it went ahead
and did. But, fbllowing a public hearing the Zoning Board
of Appeals denied the request for a variance because
WMCC hadn't shown an unavoidable "hardship." In the

A court cottld ana4)ze seaeralfactors before

deciding tuh etber a decision-making
body bad a discriminatory intent.

Here, FoL didn't plead "facts to support a prima facie
claim of religious discrimination," the court found. It
hadn't pleaded "any consistent pattern of actions dispa-
rately impacting FoL or similarly situated groups."

A CLOSER LOOK

FoL argued that one of the county officials had made a
discriminatory statement when refercncing the church,
specifically telling a local attorney not to call those affili-
ated with the FoL "Jewish" because they weren't "like
[him]." In his view, they were akin to "evangelical
Christians." But, the proposed amended complaint didn't
"meaningfully address . . . [any] consisrent pattern of ac-
tions disparately impacting FoL or similarly siruared
groups . . disparate treatment or inrpact that identify
similarly situated cornparators, . . a history ol discrirni-
nation by [the c]ounty, . . or . . what the [c]ounty's
normal procedures [we]re and the alleged deviations from
those procedures."

The case cited is Village of Arlingtort Heights v. Metro-
poLitan Housing Development Corp., 429 U.S. 252, 97 S.

Cr. 555, 50 L. Ed. 2d 450 (1977).

o 2021Thomson Reuters



Zoninq Bulletin JulY 25,2021 I Volume 15 I lssue 14

ZBA s view the hardship WMCC faced was of its own cre-
ation in that it sought to build in an area that wasn't zoned
for churches. In denying the variance, the ZBA suggested
WMCC could see if the village board would re-zone [he
area.

In 2009, WMCC requested a special-use permit from
the village's code enforcement officer (CEO). The CEO
denied the request, stating "the property is not properly
zoned for what you want to use it for and the Zoning Board
ofAppeals has denied you once already."

In 2010, WMCC's attorney wrote to the ZBA to appeal
the CEO's decision on the ground that the linding violated
RLUIPA. The ZBA nonetheless denied the appeal, so
WMCC filed suit.

BACK TO THE COURT'S RULING

The ZBA s final denial didn't "cause IWMCCI to suffer
a substantial burden under RLUIPA."

"There are several factors which indicate whether a zon-
ing decision imposes a substantial burden on a religious
institution," the court wrote. "For example, an adverse de-
cision that is final or absolute is more likely to impose a

substantial burden than a conditional denial."

And while a "conditional denial" might impose "sub-
stantial burden if the condition itself [wa]s a burden on
free exercise, the required modifications [we]re economi-
cally unfeasible, or where a zoning board's stated willing-
ness to consider a modified plan [wa]s disingenuous,"
here, all WMCC alleged was that "it suffered a substantial
burden because its present facilities [we]re inadequate,
and because [the village] . . refused to grant permission
for [it] to build a church in a light industrial zone."

While WMCC contended the village's "denial was final
and absolute, . . in the li]nstant case that [wa]s not
enough to plausibly plead a substantial burden," the court
ruled. Here's why:

o "[i]t appear[ed] clear from the [c]omplaint that the
light industrial zoning requirements [we]re a gener-

ally applicable burden that [wa]s neutrally imposed
on churches and secular organizations";

r WMCC "acknowledged, in its communications with
the Iv]illage, that it had several other alternatives
available to it, including building new structures on
its existing propefiy"; and

o it hadn't bought the property-and it knew "all along
that the zoning code does not permit churches in the
I ight i ndustri al zone."

CASE NOTE

The court noted that the Seventh U.S. Circuit Court of
Appeals had previously fbund that facts similar to those
above didn't establish a substantial burden.

The case cited is Petra Presbyterian Church v'. Village
of Nonhbrook, 489 F.3d 846 (7th Cir. 2007).

The Set,enth U.S. Circuit hos jurisdiction over lllinois,
I ndiana. and Wiscortsin.

A Closer laok:

The local "zoning code permitted churches in several other

districts within the village, inclttding the Lott, Densitr- Residen-

tial (LDR) Zone, the Medium Density Residential (MDR) Zone,

and the General CommerciaL (GC1Zone," the court explained.

Zoning News From
Around The Nation

California

Pasadena's city council to decide if zoning code
amendment should be passed to address parking for
ADUs

In June 2021 , the Pasadena City Council was set to vote
on whether to approve a zoning-code amendment that
would delete a requirement that an accessory dwelling unit
(ADU) over 150 square feet to an existing single-family
residence must have two covered parking spaces, Pasa-
duru Now reported.

If the change goes through, the covered aspect of the
parking spot requirement would be removed, the news
outlet reported. This would free up homeowners to build
up to a I,200 square foot ADU without enclosed parking,
a staff report noted, the news outlet reported.

Source: pascule nanow. c o nt

Golorado

Lakewood gets sued over'student living' zoning

Colorado Christian University (CCU) has filed suit
against the city of Lakewood, Colorado for a zoning
ordinance that bars colleges fiom owning and renting
housing fbr students in residential zones that aren't lo-
cated on its main campus, Business Den reported recently.

The lawsuit, which was filed with the Jelferson County
District Court, alleges the city violated the rights of the
private university under both the federal and Colorado
constitutions, the news outlet reported. The controversy
arose after Lakewood's city council, with a 6-5 vote,
defined "student living unit" as a unit owned that a college
or university owns or controls that's inhabited by students
who are enrolled in studies, with the definition taking e['-

f'ect May 21 ,202I, Business Derr reported. The news outlet
noted that one city councilor said following the vote, the
idea behind the dehnition was to ensure the integrity of
the residential neighborhoods.

For more information about this issue in Lakewood,
including links to a stalf memo and the ordinance's text,
visit lakewoodspeaks.org/itents/6 I 9.

Source: bus ine s s de n. cont

Massachusetts

Local town rejects bid to build housing for 55+
residents

Voters in the town of Westford. Massachusetts have

o 202l Thomson Reuters



July 25, 2021 I volume 15 I lssue 14 Zoning Bulletin

rejected a zoning proposal that would have meant a 55-
plus housing development could proceed with construc-
tion, Wicked ktcal reported recently.

In June 2021,by a vote of 88 to 79, a proposal to extend
the town's senior residential multifamily overlay district
was defeated.

Source: yvickedLocal.cotn

New York

Possible new storage facility construction project under
review by city planning department

The city planning department is currently reviewing
zoning text amendments and an environmental assessment
statement that could give the green light for a storage fa-
cility construction project in Rockaway Beach in New
York's Queens borough, New YorkYimby reporLed recently.
If the proposal goes through the current manufacturing
district would be converted to a mixed use with com-
mercial retail overlay district, it noted.

Source: nevtty o rk)t imby. c om

South Carolina

Charleston to look at elevation and hydrology in
developing land-use maps for the future

Charleston, South Carolina, which sits on the coast of
the Atlantic Coast and is prone to flooding due to hur-
ricanes and sea-level rise is looking a[ how elevation and
hydrology should impact the way its zoning maps arc
drawn, the Post and Courier reported recently.

Visit charleston-sc. gov/DocumentCenter/View/2052 I /
Floodi ns-and-Sea-Level-Rise-Strategy-20 I 9-printer-frien
dly?bidld to download Charleston's Flooding and Sea
Leyel Strategy Specittl Report (Second Edition), which
outlines the city's primary goals with respect to addressing
concerns over flooding and seal level changes:

o Protect the citizens and neighborhoods-"It is im-
perative that we ensure, through innovative policies,
that we are building future neighborhoods resilient
to flooding that will maintain their value in spite ol
future challenges," the report notes;

o Safeguard and enhance Charleston,s infrastruc-
ture-"We must ensure that critical lifesaving re-
sources such as hospitals, fire stations, police substa-
tions and the transportation corridors first responders
use to connect our citizens to the services they
provide remain as flood free and accessible as pos-
sible";

o Preserve the businesses' and organizations' eco-
nomic viability-"[O]ur city of the future needs to

be designed and built, in partnership with these
important institutions, with resilience and adapt-
ability at the forefront to ensure our future economic
viability";

o Ensure that vital resources are protected-In
treating the "environment as both a natural and eco-
nomic resource" the city noted it "must promote nat-
ural floodplain function and increase [its] natural
systems' ability to mitigate eft'ects of sea level rise
while enjoying the co-benefits of improving the
place we live"; and

r Collaborate more with strategic partners-"[W]e
recognize and acknowledge that water knows no
boundaries. . . [F]or us to be successful we will
need to work with our neighbors, both public and
private," the report stated.

Elsewhere in South Carolina, Richland County is mak-
ing a series of graphics, pamphlets, and videos available to
help the public understand what zoning, zoning districts,
and rezoning ntean, the Columbia Regional Business Re-
p o rt report ed recently.

The county's first video entitled Zoning l0l: What is
Zoning? is available at youtube.com/watch?v=ETC FTL
Opr4.

The campaign is part of the county's "Land Develop-
ment Code Rewrite," which according to the county's
website will shape growth for its future. "The purpose of
the Rewrite is to develop 2lst Century regulations that
implement the County's vision for where and how it
grows, are user-friendly for all citizens, align with current
best practices, allow for development in dif,ferent contexts,
provide for higher-quality development, and support a
more sustainable Richland County," the website stated.

Richland county explained that its land development
code "is the adopted law of the county that regulates land
use, growth, and development. It governs everything from
the types of uses, location, and size of a developrnent
within various zones, as well as establishes the procedures
tbr how development proposals are reviewed, inclucling
approvals and denials." And, the LDC "controls various
development and subdivision standards such as parking,
landscaping, signs, addressing, building form, and open
space within a development, and the division and platting
of land as well as road layout and other infrastructure
requirements."

To learn more, visit richlandcountysc.gov/Government/
Departmenl"s/Plann in g-Devel opment.

Sources ; c harl e stort- s c. got, I post tutdc o uri e r c ont; c o I um
b i ab u s i n e s s re p o rt. c o m; r i c h I a n d c o u n t ), s c,. g o t,

o 2021Thomson Reuters


	10-05-21 PC Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	09-07-2021 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.4-10)
	Item I.A.1. - New Business - Public Hearing - VAR 5-21 Koinonia and Turner.pdf (p.11-28)
	A1 SITE PLAN

	Item I.B.1. - Misc.- Special Election of Vice-Chairperson.pdf (p.29)
	Training - Open Meeting Law - 2021.pdf (p.30-31)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-10-21.pdf (p.32-39)
	Zoning Bulletin - 07-25-21.pdf (p.40-47)

